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If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment
plans, please check the following box.  ☐

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to
Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�), other than securities offered only in
connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box.  ☒

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act,
please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective
registration statement for the same offering.  ☐

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering.  ☐

If this form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that
shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the
following box.  ☒

If this form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to
register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check
the following box.  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ☒ Accelerated filer ☐

Non-accelerated filer ☐  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ☐

Calculation of Registration Fee

Title of Each Class of

Securities to be Registered

Amount

to be

Registered

Proposed

Maximum

Offering Price

Per Unit

Proposed

Maximum

Aggregate

Offering Price

Amount of

Registration Fee
Series A Convertible Preference Shares, par
value $0.01 per share 625,000 $1,000(1) $625,000,000(1) $72,437.50(2)
Common Shares, par value $0.18 per share 7,049,507(3) (4)

Edgar Filing: SIGNET JEWELERS LTD - Form S-3ASR

Table of Contents 3



(1) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee.
(2) Calculated pursuant to Rule 457(o) promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities

Act�).
(3) Based on the Registrant�s reasonable good-faith estimate of the number of common shares issuable upon

conversion of the Series A Convertible Preference Shares. Each Series A Convertible Preference Share will be
convertible into a number of common shares determined by dividing the sum of the stated value of such Series A
Convertible Preference Share on the conversion date and any accrued and unpaid dividends with respect to such
Series A Convertible Preference Share by the applicable conversion price. The stated value of the Series A
Convertible Preference Shares may increase as a result the payment of dividends not paid in cash. The conversion
price is equal to $1,000 divided by the applicable conversion rate. The current conversion rate is approximately
10.6529 common shares per Series A Convertible Preference Share and is subject to adjustment in accordance
with provisions described in this Registration Statement. Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act, the
common shares offered hereby shall be deemed to cover additional securities to be offered to prevent dilution
resulting from stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions. Common shares issuable upon conversion of
the Series A Convertible Preference Shares that exceed the estimated amount provided above that are not covered
by Rule 416 will be covered by a separate registration statement, including, if available, pursuant to Rule 462(b).

(4) No separate consideration will be received for the common shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A
Convertible Preference Shares, and, therefore, no registration fee for those shares is required pursuant to Rule
457(i) under the Securities Act.
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PROSPECTUS

Signet Jewelers Limited

Series A Convertible Preference Shares

Common Shares

This prospectus relates to the resale from time to time by the selling shareholders named in this prospectus of up to an
aggregate of (i) 625,000 shares of our Series A Convertible Preference Shares, par value $0.01 per share (the �Series A
Preference Shares�), originally issued on October 5, 2016 in a private transaction exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�), and (ii) up to 7,049,507 common shares,
par value $0.18 per share (the �Common Shares�), issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares. See
�Selling Shareholders� for information regarding the selling shareholders. Subject to the transfer restrictions applicable
to the Series A Preference Shares and the Common Shares held by the selling shareholders, the selling shareholders
may offer and sell Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares in public or private transactions, or both. These
sales may occur at fixed prices, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to prevailing market
prices, or at negotiated prices.

The selling shareholders may sell all or a portion of the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares through
underwriters, broker dealers or agents, who may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or
commissions from the selling shareholders, the purchasers of the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares, or
both. See �Plan of Distribution� for a more complete description of the ways in which the Series A Preference Shares or
Common Shares may be sold. If applicable, the names of any underwriters, dealers or agents, the specific terms of the
plan of distribution, any over-allotment option and any applicable underwriting discounts and commissions will be set
forth in a supplement to this prospectus. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the selling shareholders� sale of
Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares. We have agreed to bear the expenses (other than underwriting
discounts and selling commissions) in connection with the registration of the offer and sale of the Series A Preference
Shares and the Common Shares that the selling shareholders are offering under this prospectus.

Our Common Shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �SIG.� On November 3, 2016, the
closing price of our Common Shares on the New York Stock Exchange was $80.78 per share. The Series A Preference
Shares are not listed on any exchange, and we do not intend to list the Series A Preference Shares on any exchange.

Our registered office is located at 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda, and our telephone number is (441)
296-5872.

Investing in the Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares involves risks. You should read this
prospectus, any prospectus supplement, as well as the risks contained or incorporated by reference herein or
therein, before investing in the Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares.

Edgar Filing: SIGNET JEWELERS LTD - Form S-3ASR

Table of Contents 5



Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or passed on the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offense.

Prospectus dated November 4, 2016
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the �SEC�) using the �automatic shelf� registration process. Under the shelf registration process, the selling
shareholders or their pledgees, donees, transferees or other successors-in-interest, may from time to time use this
prospectus to sell or otherwise dispose of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares that
the selling shareholders may sell or otherwise dispose of. Any prospectus supplement may also add, update or change
information contained in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and
any prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information provided in the prospectus supplement. This
prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. The registration statement
filed with the SEC includes or incorporates by reference certain information that provides more details about the
matters discussed in this prospectus. You should carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement,
together with the additional information described below under the heading �Where You Can Find Additional
Information; Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference.�

In this prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to (i) �Signet,� the �Company,� �we,� �us,� and �our�
refer to Signet Jewelers Limited, a Bermuda corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. Neither we
nor the selling shareholders have authorized any person to provide you with any information or represent
anything about us or this offering that is not contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, any
prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus prepared by us or on our behalf. If given or made, any
such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorized by us. The
selling shareholders are not making an offer to sell, nor seeking offers to buy, the Series A Preference Shares or
Common Shares in any jurisdiction where an offer or sale is not permitted or to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

Under no circumstances should the delivery to you of this prospectus create any implication that the
information contained in this prospectus is correct as of any time after the date of this prospectus. Our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

1
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION; INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN

DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
�Exchange Act�), and, in accordance with the Exchange Act, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy materials filed with the SEC at the SEC�s
Public Reference Room, located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of its public reference room. Our SEC filings are also
available to the public on the SEC�s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov and can also be found on our website at
http://www.signetjewelers.com. However, the information on or accessible through our website is not a part of this
prospectus. In addition, you can inspect reports and other information we file at the office of the New York Stock
Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC. This prospectus does not contain all the
information set forth in the registration statement, parts of which are omitted in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC. For further information with respect to us and the securities offered hereby, reference is made
to the registration statement.

The SEC allows us to �incorporate by reference� information into this prospectus, which means that we can disclose
important information about us by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information
incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus. This prospectus incorporates by reference the
documents and reports listed below (other than portions of these documents that are deemed to have been furnished
and not filed):

� Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 30, 2016, filed with the SEC on March 24,
2016 (our �Form 10-K�);

� The portions of our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the SEC on May 4, 2016,
which were incorporated by reference into our Form 10-K;

� Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended April 30, 2016 and July 30, 2016, filed with
the SEC on June 3, 2016 and August 31, 2016, respectively;

� Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 16, 2016, June 21, 2016, July 15, 2016, August 25,
2016, October 6, 2016 and November 3, 2016; and

� The description of our Common Shares contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A, filed with
the SEC on September 11, 2008.

We also incorporate by reference the information contained in all other documents we will file with the SEC pursuant
to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (other than portions of these documents that are deemed to
have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules, including current reports on Form 8-K furnished
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under Item 2.02 and Item 7.01 (including any financial statements in exhibits relating thereto furnished pursuant to
Item 9.01)) after the date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of any offering made under this prospectus.
The information contained in any such document will be considered part of this prospectus from the date the
document is filed with the SEC.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus will
be deemed to be modified or superseded to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently
filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes
that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to
constitute a part of this prospectus.

We undertake to provide without charge to any person to whom a copy of this prospectus is delivered, upon oral or
written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents that have been incorporated by reference in this
prospectus, other than exhibits to such other documents (unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by
reference therein). Requests for such copies should be directed to James Grant at 375 Ghent Road, Akron, Ohio
44333, (330) 668-5000.

2

Edgar Filing: SIGNET JEWELERS LTD - Form S-3ASR

Table of Contents 10



Table of Contents

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements contained in this prospectus, in the documents incorporated by reference herein and in any
prospectus supplement are �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act and 21E of the Exchange Act. These statements, based upon
management�s beliefs and expectations as well as on assumptions made by and data currently available to
management, include statements regarding, among other things, our results of operation, financial condition, liquidity,
prospects, growth, strategies and the industry in which we operate. The use of the words �expects,� �intends,� �anticipates,�
�estimates,� �predicts,� �believes,� �should,� �potential,� �may,� �forecast,� �objective,� �plan,� or �target,� and other similar expressions
are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to general economic
conditions, a decline in consumer spending, the merchandising, pricing and inventory policies followed by us, our
reputation and the reputation of our brands, the level of competition in the jewelry sector, the cost and availability of
diamonds, gold and other precious metals, regulations relating to customer credit, seasonality of our business,
financial market risks, deterioration in customers� financial condition, exchange rate fluctuations, changes in our credit
rating, changes in consumer attitudes regarding jewelry, management of social, ethical and environmental risks,
security breaches and other disruptions to our information technology infrastructure and databases, inadequacy in and
disruptions to internal controls and systems, changes in assumptions used in making accounting estimates relating to
items such as extended service plans and pensions, risks related to us being a Bermuda corporation, the impact of the
acquisition of Zale Corporation on relationships, including with employees, suppliers, customers and competitors, and
our ability to successfully integrate Zale Corporation�s operations and to realize synergies from the transaction.

For a discussion of these risks and other risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in any forward looking statement, see �Risk Factors� in our Form 10-K, our Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended July 30, 2016 filed on August 31, 2016 (our �Q2 Form 10-Q�) and in our subsequent filings with the
SEC, as incorporated by reference into this prospectus. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize,
or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect, our actual operating and financial performance may vary in
material respects from the performance projected in these forward-looking statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus speaks only as of the date on which we make it. Factors
or events that could cause our actual operating and financial performance to differ may emerge from time to time, and
it is not possible for us to predict all of them. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by
law.

3
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THE COMPANY

Signet Jewelers Limited is the world�s largest retailer of diamond jewelry. The Company does business principally in
the mid-market jewelry sector and manages its business by store brand grouping, a description of which follows:

� The Sterling Jewelers division is one reportable segment. It operated 1,540 stores in all 50 US states at
January 30, 2016. Its stores operate nationally in malls and off-mall locations principally as Kay
Jewelers (�Kay�), Kay Jewelers Outlet, Jared The Galleria Of Jewelry and Jared Vault. The division also
operates a variety of mall-based regional brands.

� The Zale division consists of two reportable segments:

� Zale Jewelry, which operated 977 jewelry stores at January 30, 2016, is located primarily in
shopping malls in North America. Zale Jewelry includes the US store brand Zales (Zales Jewelers
and Zales Outlet), which operates in all 50 US states, and the Canada store brand Peoples
Jewellers, which operates in nine provinces. The division also operates regional brands Gordon�s
Jewelers and Mappins.

� Piercing Pagoda, which operated 605 mall-based kiosks at January 30, 2016, is located in
shopping malls in the US and Puerto Rico.

� The UK Jewelry division is one reportable segment. It operated 503 stores at January 30, 2016. Its
stores operate in shopping malls and off-mall locations (i.e. high street) principally as H.Samuel and
Ernest Jones.

Certain company activities (e.g. diamond sourcing) are managed as a separate operating segment and are aggregated
with unallocated corporate administrative functions in the segment �Other� for financial reporting purposes. Our
diamond sourcing function includes our diamond polishing factory in Botswana.

We are incorporated in Bermuda and our registered office is located at 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda,
and our telephone number is (441) 296-5872. Our web site is www.signetjewelers.com. The information on or
otherwise accessible through our web site does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

4
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RISK FACTORS

Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the specific risks described under the heading
�Risk Factors� in the applicable prospectus supplement and under the caption �Risk Factors� in any of our filings with the
SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, including, without limitation, our Form 10-K and
our Q2 Form 10-Q, which are on file with the SEC and incorporated by reference in this prospectus. If any of these
risks, as well as other risks and uncertainties that are not yet identified or that we currently think are immaterial,
actually occur, our business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Risks Related to the Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares

The Series A Preference Shares are equity and are subordinate to all of our existing and future indebtedness, and
the Series A Preference Shares place no limitations on the amount of indebtedness we and our subsidiaries may
incur in the future.

The Series A Preference Shares are equity interests in our Company and do not constitute indebtedness. As such, the
Series A Preference Shares, like our Common Shares, rank junior to all indebtedness and other non-equity claims on
our Company with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on our Company, including in a liquidation of our
Company.

In addition, the Series A Preference Shares do not limit the amount of debt or other obligations we or our subsidiaries
may incur in the future. Accordingly, we and our subsidiaries may incur substantial amounts of additional debt and
other obligations that will rank senior to the Series A Preference Shares or to which the Series A Preference Shares
will be structurally subordinated.

The Series A Preference Shares may rank junior in rights and preferences to preferred shares issued by us in the
future.

We may issue preference shares in the future the terms of which are expressly senior to the Series A Preference
Shares. The terms of any such future preference shares expressly senior to the Series A Preference Shares may restrict
dividend payments on the Series A Preference Shares, redemptions of the Series A Preference Shares or distributions
upon the liquidation, winding-up and dissolution of the Company. For example, the terms of any such senior
preference shares may provide that, unless full dividends for all of our outstanding preference shares senior to the
Series A Preference Shares have been paid for the relevant periods, no dividends will be paid on the Series A
Preference Shares, and no Series A Preference Shares may be repurchased, redeemed, or otherwise acquired by us
prior to the repurchase or redemption of such future preference shares. This could result in dividends on the Series A
Preference Shares not being paid when contemplated, or the redemption of the Series A Preference Shares not
occurring when contemplated. In addition, in the event of our liquidation, winding-up and dissolution, the terms of the
senior preference shares may prohibit us from making payments on the Series A Preference Shares until all amounts
due to holders of the senior preference shares in such circumstances are paid in full.

An active trading market for the Series A Preference Shares may not develop.

The Series A Preference Shares have no established trading market and are not listed on any securities exchange, and
we do not intend to list the Series A Preference Shares on any such exchange. Until November 15, 2024, investors
seeking liquidity will generally be limited to selling their Series A Preference Shares in the secondary market or
selling the underlying Common Shares. We cannot assure you that an active trading market in the Series A Preference
Shares will develop and, even if it develops, we cannot assure you that it will last. In either case, the trading price of
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the Series A Preference Shares could be adversely affected and holders� ability to transfer Series A Preference Shares
will be limited.
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The market price of the Series A Preference Shares will be directly affected by the market price of our Common
Shares, which may be volatile.

To the extent that a secondary market for the Series A Preference Shares develops, we believe that the market price of
the Series A Preference Shares will be significantly affected by the market price of our Common Shares. We cannot
predict how our Common Shares will trade in the future. This may result in greater volatility in the market price of the
Series A Preference Shares than would be expected for nonconvertible preference shares. From the beginning of fiscal
year 2014 to November 3, 2016, the reported high and low prices for our Common Shares ranged from a low of
$58.85 to a high of $152.27 per share.

Our Common Share price may fluctuate substantially as a result of variations in the actual or anticipated results and
financial conditions of Signet and other companies in the retail industry and the stock market�s view of the acquisition
of Zale Corporation. In addition, the stock market has experienced price and volume fluctuations that have affected
the market price of many retail and other stocks in a manner unrelated, or disproportionate, to the operating
performance of these companies.

We provide public guidance on our expected operating and financial results for future periods. Although we believe
that this guidance provides investors and analysts with a better understanding of management�s expectations for the
future and is useful to our shareholders and potential shareholders, such guidance is comprised of forward-looking
statements subject to the risks and uncertainties described in this prospectus and in our other public filings and public
statements. Our actual results may not always be in line with or exceed the provided guidance or the expectations of
our investors and analysts, especially in times of economic uncertainty. In the past, when we have reduced our
previously provided guidance, the market price of our Common Shares has declined. If, in the future, our operating or
financial results for a particular period do not meet our guidance or the expectations of our investors and analysts or if
we reduce our guidance for future periods, the market price of our Common Shares may decline.

In addition, we may fail to meet the expectations of our shareholders or of analysts at some time in the future. If the
analysts that regularly follow our Common Shares lower their rating or lower their projections for future growth and
financial performance, the market price of our Common Shares could decline.

The market price of our Common Shares may also be affected by market conditions affecting the stock markets in
general, including price and trading fluctuations on the New York Stock Exchange. These conditions may result in (i)
volatility in the level of, and fluctuations in, the market prices of stocks generally and, in turn, the Common Shares
and (ii) sales of substantial amounts of the Common Shares in the market, in each case that could be unrelated or
disproportionate to changes in our operating performance.

These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market prices of our Common Shares, and, in turn, the
Series A Preference Shares.

In addition, we expect that the market price of the Series A Preference Shares will be influenced by yield and interest
rates in the capital markets and our perceived creditworthiness.

There may be future sales or other dilution of our equity, which may adversely affect the market price of our
Common Shares or the Series A Preference Shares and may negatively impact the holders� investment.

Except in certain circumstances, we are not restricted from issuing additional Common Shares or preference shares,
including any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, Common
Shares or preference shares or any substantially similar securities. The market price of our Common Shares or Series
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A Preference Shares could decline as a result of sales of a large number of Common Shares or Series A Preference
Shares or similar securities in the market or the perception that such sales could occur. For example, if we issue
preference shares in the future that has a preference over our Common Shares with respect to the payment of
dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, or if we issue preference shares with voting rights that
dilute the voting power of our Common Shares, the rights of holders of our Common Shares or the market price of our
Common Shares could be adversely affected.
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In addition, each Series A Preference Share will initially be convertible at the option of the holder thereof into our
Common Shares. The conversion of some or all of the Series A Preference Shares will dilute the ownership interest of
our existing common shareholders. Any sales in the public market of our Common Shares issuable upon such
conversion could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our outstanding Common Shares and Series A
Preference Shares and may make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at times and prices that
we deem appropriate. In addition, the existence of our Series A Preference Shares may encourage short selling or
arbitrage trading activity by market participants because the conversion of our Series A Preference Shares could
depress the price of our equity securities. As noted above, a decline in the market price of the Common Shares may
negatively impact the market price for the Series A Preference Shares.

If you convert your Series A Preference Shares into Common Shares, you may experience immediate dilution.

If you convert your Series A Preference Share into Common Shares, you may experience immediate dilution because
the per share conversion price of the Series A Preference Shares may be, and at the closing of the original issuance
was, higher than the net tangible book value per share of the Common Shares. In addition, you will also experience
dilution when and if we issue additional Common Shares, including Common Shares we may be required to issue
pursuant to options or other rights outstanding as of the original issue date of the Series A Preference Shares or
pursuant to any present or future employee, director, manager or consultant benefit plan or program approved by our
board of directors (the �Board�).

The Series A Preference Shares are subject to conversion at our option in certain circumstances after October 5,
2018 based on the trading price of our Common Shares.

At any time on or after October 5, 2018, if the volume-weighted average price per Common Share is greater than
175% of the then-conversion price for at least 20 consecutive trading days prior to the notice date of the mandatory
conversion, we will be entitled, but not required, to convert any or all of the Series A Preference Shares at a
conversion price equal to the quotient of (A) the sum (without duplication) of the stated value per Series A Preference
Share and the accrued but unpaid regular dividends with respect to such Series A Preference Share, each as of the
mandatory conversion date, divided by (B) the conversion price of such Series A Preference Share in effect as of the
mandatory conversion date plus cash in lieu of fractional shares. Following any such conversion, a holder will no
longer be entitled to the dividend or other rights associated with the Series A Preference Shares.

The Series A Preference Shares bear a risk of redemption by us.

We may voluntarily redeem some or all of the Series A Preference Shares for cash on or after November 15, 2024 at a
redemption price per share equal to the sum of (1) the stated value per share of the Series A Preference Shares to be
redeemed plus (2) an amount per share equal to accrued, but unpaid, dividends on such share of Series A Preference
Shares (other than any such regular dividends included in such stated value) to, but excluding, the date of redemption.
Any such redemption may occur at a time that is unfavorable to holders of the Series A Preference Shares. For further
information regarding our ability to redeem the Series A Preference Shares, see �Description of Series A Preference
Shares�Redemption and Repurchase�Redemption at the Option of the Company.�

The Series A Preference Shares have not been rated.

The Series A Preference Shares have not been rated by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization. This
may affect the market price of the Series A Preference Shares.

Holders of the Series A Preference Shares have limited repurchase rights prior to November 15, 2024.
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The Series A Preference Shares, unlike indebtedness, will not give rise to a claim for payment of a principal amount at
a particular date. As a result, holders of the Series A Preference Shares may be required to bear the financial risks of
an investment in the Series A Preference Shares for an extended period of time. Holders have a right to require us to
repurchase the Series A Preference Shares on or after November 15, 2024, subject to our having sufficient funds
legally available under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended (the �Bermuda Companies Act�). See
�Description of Series A Preference Shares�Redemption and Repurchase�Repurchase at
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the Option of the Holder.� In addition, holders have the option to require us to repurchase any or all of their Series A
Preference Shares upon the occurrence of a fundamental change. Upon such repurchase, we will pay or deliver, as
applicable, at such holder�s election, either (i) cash in an amount equal to 101% of the stated value of such Series A
Preference Shares, plus the accrued, but unpaid, dividends on such shares (other than any such regular dividends
included in such stated value) to, but excluding, the repurchase date; or (ii) the amount of cash and/or other assets
such holder would have received had such holder, immediately prior to such fundamental change, converted such
Series A Preference Shares and, if applicable, been entitled to participate in such fundamental change as a holder of
Common Shares. See �Description of Series A Preference Shares�Redemption and Repurchase�Repurchases at the
Option of the Holder Upon a Fundamental Change.�

We may not be able to pay the repurchase price of the Series A Preference Shares in cash upon a fundamental
change. We also could be prevented from paying dividends on the Series A Preference Shares.

As described above, in the event of a fundamental change, you will have the right to require us to repurchase all your
Series A Preference Shares for cash. However, we may not have sufficient cash to repurchase your Series A
Preference Shares upon a fundamental change or may be otherwise unable to pay the repurchase price in cash.

In the future, we may agree to restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. Even if the terms of the instruments
governing our indebtedness allow us to pay dividends and to purchase the Series A Preference Shares in cash, we can
only make such payments out of our surplus, as determined by our Board, or, if there is no surplus, out of our net
profits for the fiscal year in which the payment occurs and/or for the preceding fiscal year, as determined by our
Board, and such funds may not be available to pay dividends to you or to purchase your Series A Preference Shares.
Dividends on the Series A Preference Shares will only be paid when, as and if declared by our Board. The Board may
elect not to declare dividends on the Series A Preference Shares. In addition, to maintain our credit rating, we may be
limited in our ability to pay dividends so that we can maintain an appropriate level of debt.

Further, because a substantial amount of our operations are conducted through our subsidiaries, our ability to purchase
the Series A Preference Shares for cash or to pay dividends on the Series A Preference Shares may be limited by
restrictions on our ability to obtain funds for such purchase or dividends through dividends from our subsidiaries.

The conversion rate of the Series A Preference Shares may not be adjusted for all dilutive events that may
adversely affect the market price of the Series A Preferred Shares or the Common Shares issuable upon conversion
of the Series A Preference Shares.

The number of our Common Shares that holders are entitled to receive upon conversion of a share of Series A
Preference Shares is subject to adjustment for certain events arising from subdivisions, consolidations or a
reclassification of the Common Shares, dividends on our Common Shares, certain purchases of Common Shares by us
or our subsidiaries and certain issuances of Common Shares or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for
Common Shares. We will not adjust the conversion rate for other events, including the issuance of Common Shares
pursuant to plans for reinvestment of dividends or interest, options or rights to purchase such shares pursuant to
benefit plans or employee agreements, any option, warrant, right, or exercisable, exchangeable or convertible security
issued as of October 5, 2016 or for a change in the par value of the Common Shares. There can be no assurance that an
event that adversely affects the value of the Series A Preference Shares, but does not result in an adjustment to the
conversion rate, will not occur. Further, if any of these other events adversely affects the market price of our Common
Shares, it may also adversely affect the market price of the Series A Preference Shares. In addition, we are not
restricted from offering Common Shares in the future or engaging in other transactions that may dilute our Common
Shares.
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During a liquidation, our obligations to the holders of our Series A Preference Shares must be satisfied before any
payments are made to the holders of our Common Shares.

If we are liquidated, the holders of our Series A Preference Shares, and any future preference shares we may issue,
will be entitled to be paid in full before any payments are made to the holders of our Common Shares. As of October
29, 2016, our Series A Preference Shares had an aggregate liquidation preference of $627.2 million. Any funds used
to pay the holders of our Series A Preference Shares must be paid before any amounts may be paid to the holders of
our Common Shares.
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U.S. investors may have to pay taxes if we make distributions on the Series A Preference Shares by increasing the
stated value of the Series A Preference Shares, even if the investors do not receive any cash.

We may make distributions on the Series A Preference Shares in the form of increasing the stated value of the Series
A Preference Shares rather than in cash. We expect such distributions generally to be taxable in the same manner as
cash distributions. U.S. Holders (as defined in �Material Income Tax Considerations�U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations�) will generally recognize dividend income upon the increase in the stated value of the Series A
Preference Shares in years in which we have current or accumulated earnings and profits in an amount equal to the fair
market value of such increased stated value of the Series A Preference Shares. In such a case, a U.S. Holder�s tax
liability may exceed the cash such holder receives from the Series A Preference Shares. Thus, U.S. Holders of the
Series A Preference Shares would be required to use funds from other sources to satisfy their tax liabilities arising
from their ownership of the Series A Preference Shares. See �Material Income Tax Considerations�U.S. Federal Income
Tax Considerations�Increases of the Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares� regarding the U.S. federal income
tax consequences of distributions on the Series A Preference Shares.

U.S. investors may have to pay taxes if we adjust the conversion rate of the Series A Preference Shares in certain
circumstances, even though investors would not receive any cash.

We may adjust the conversion rate of the Series A Preference Shares in certain circumstances, including, but not
limited to, the payment of certain cash distributions with respect to the Common Shares. Upon certain adjustments to
(or certain failures to make adjustments to) the conversion rate, U.S. Holders may be treated as having received a
constructive distribution from us, resulting in taxable income to them for U.S. federal income tax purposes, even
though holders would not receive any cash in connection with the adjustment to (or failure to adjust) the conversion
rate and even though holders might not exercise their conversion right. See �Material Income Tax Considerations�U.S.
Federal Income Tax Considerations�Adjustment of Conversion Rate� regarding the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of an adjustment to the conversion rate of the Series A Preferred Shares.

9
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERENCE DIVIDENDS

The following table presents our historical ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends for the periods
indicated.

26 Weeks
Ended July 30, Fiscal Year(1)

2016 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
3.81x 3.98x 3.84x 6.06x 6.11x 5.60x

(1) Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to January 31. Fiscal years 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2012 consisted of
52 weeks. Fiscal year 2013 consisted of 53 weeks.

For the purposes of calculating the ratio of combined fixed charges and preference dividends to earnings, �earnings� are
defined as income before income taxes plus �fixed charges.� Fixed charges comprise interest expense, net, facility
amendment fee amortization and an estimate of the interest within rental expense. For the historical periods presented,
Signet had no capitalized interest or amortization of such interest. Interest within rental expense is estimated to be
one-third of our rental expense.

10
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USE OF PROCEEDS

All Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares offered by this prospectus are being registered for the accounts of
the selling shareholders. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of these securities.

11
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DESCRIPTION OF COMMON SHARES

The following description of the Common Shares to be registered may not be complete and is subject to, and qualified
in its entirety by reference to, the provisions of the Signet Jewelers Limited Memorandum of Association (the
�Memorandum of Association�) and the Signet Jewelers Limited Bye-laws (the �Bye-laws�). The description of the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws contained herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of
the documents, which are included as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is part and
incorporated by reference herein.

General

We currently have 500,000,000 authorized Common Shares, par value $0.18 per share, of which 69,580,554 Common
Shares were issued and outstanding as of October 28, 2016. As of October 28, 2016, (i) 805,402 Common Shares are
reserved for issuance in connection with outstanding share options and share units of the Company, and (ii)
17,601,501 Common Shares are held by us in our treasury. All of the issued Common Shares have been duly
authorized and validly issued and are fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights.

Dividend Rights

Bermuda law does not permit the declaration or payment of dividends or distributions of contributed surplus by a
company if there are reasonable grounds for believing that a company is, or after the payment is made would be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or the realizable value of such company�s assets would be less, as a
result of the payment, than the aggregate of its liabilities. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive such
dividends as lawfully may be declared from time to time by our Board.

Rights of Repurchase and Redemption

We, upon a resolution of our Board, may generally make purchases of our Common Shares without shareholder
approval. Any Common Shares repurchased by us would either be cancelled or held as treasury shares in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act. In addition, we may only repurchase Common Shares if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that we can pay our liabilities as they become due at the time of repurchase and thereafter.

Voting Rights

In general, and except as provided below, a shareholder who is present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at a
shareholders� meeting is entitled to one vote on a show of hands regardless of the number of Common Shares he or she
holds. On a poll, each shareholder having the right to vote, including proxies for shareholders, is entitled to one vote
for each Common Share held. Under the Bye-laws, subject to certain exceptions, including certain amendments to the
Bye-laws and certain amalgamations (which require the affirmative votes of a majority of at least 75% of the
outstanding Common Shares) and certain business combinations (which require the affirmative votes of a majority of
at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding Common Shares), any resolutions at any general meeting are generally decided by a
simple majority of the votes cast. No member is entitled to vote at a general meeting unless such member has paid all
the calls on all Common Shares held by such member. Except as provided below under ��Amalgamations,� at any
general meeting, two or more members present in person or by proxy at the commencement of the meeting constitute
a quorum for the transaction of business. The Bye-laws provide that resolutions put to a vote at any general meeting
will be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is demanded in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Under the Bye-laws, proxies of shareholders are entitled to attend, demand or to join in demanding a poll, and vote at
shareholders� meetings.

Amendment of Bye-laws. Under the Bermuda Companies Act, a company�s bye-laws may be amended only by both a
resolution passed by the Board and a resolution passed by the shareholders. Under the Bye-laws, an affirmative vote
of not less than 75% of the directors then in office and of the holders of 75% of the total combined voting power of all
issued shares of the company is required to amend certain of the Bye-laws.
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Amalgamations. The Bermuda Companies Act permits an amalgamation between two or more Bermuda companies,
or between one or more Bermuda �exempted companies� and one or more foreign companies. Under Bermuda law, we
are an �exempted company.�

The Bye-laws provide that we will not amalgamate with any other company unless the amalgamation agreement
relating thereto has been approved by: (1) a resolution passed by members holding at least 75% of the total voting
rights attaching to all the issued shares in the capital of the Company entitled to vote on such a resolution and the
quorum for a meeting convened to pass such a resolution is two or more persons present representing in person or by
proxy in excess of 50% of such voting rights entitled to vote on such resolution and present throughout the meeting; or
(2) in the case of an amalgamation agreement approved by our Board prior to the commencement of the meeting, a
resolution passed by simple majority of the votes cast by those members attending and voting at such meeting and the
quorum for such a meeting is two or more persons present in person or by proxy.

Business Combinations. The Bye-laws provide that we are prohibited from engaging, under certain circumstances, in a
�business combination� (as defined in the Bye-laws) with any �interested shareholder� (as defined in the Bye-laws) for
three years following the date that the shareholder became an interested shareholder, unless the business combination
is approved by the Board and authorized at a general meeting by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the issued
Common Shares that are not owned by the interested shareholder, subject to certain exceptions. A �business
combination� is defined to include, among other things, a merger, amalgamation or consolidation involving us and the
interested shareholder and a sale of 10 % or more of our assets. In general, an �interested shareholder� is defined as any
entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of our Common Shares and any entity or person affiliated with or
associated with that entity or person.

Other Transactions. As a Bermuda company, we may enter into certain business transactions with significant
shareholders, including asset sales, in which a significant shareholder receives, or could receive, a financial benefit
that is greater than that received, or to be received, by other shareholders with prior approval from the Board but
without obtaining prior approval from our shareholders.

Action by Written Consent. Under Bermuda law and subject to the Bye-laws, shareholders may take action by written
consent; however, action by written consent under the Bye-laws requires the consent of all shareholders.

Classification of the Board

The Bye-laws provide that the number of directors will be determined by the Board subject to a maximum of 15.
Currently, our Board consists of eleven persons. The Bye-laws do not provide for cumulative voting.

Liquidation Rights

The Bye-laws provide that in the event of a winding-up or dissolution of the Company, whether voluntary or
involuntary, holders of our Common Shares will be entitled to the surplus assets of the Company.

If we are to be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a resolution of the shareholders, divide amongst the
shareholders in specie or in kind the whole or any part of our assets (whether they consist of property of the same kind
or not) and may, for this purpose, set such value on these assets as the liquidator deems fair and may determine how
such division shall be carried out as between shareholders or different classes of shareholders. However, no
shareholder will be compelled to accept any shares or other securities or assets whereon there is any liability.

Pre-emption Rights
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Under Bermuda law, unless otherwise provided in a company�s bye-laws, shareholders of a company are not entitled to
pre-emptive rights. The Bye-laws do not provide for pre-emptive rights.
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Preference Shares

Subject to the Bye-laws and Bermuda law, the Board has the power to issue any of our unissued shares as it
determines, including the issuance of any shares or class of shares with preferred, deferred or other special rights.

Subject to certain limitations contained in the Bye-laws and any limitations prescribed by applicable law, the Board is
authorized to issue preference shares in one or more series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights
and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such shares, including but not limited to dividend rates, conversion
rights, voting rights, terms of redemption/repurchase (including sinking fund provisions), redemption/repurchase
prices and liquidation preferences, and the number of shares constituting, and the designation of, any such series,
without further vote or action by shareholders.

Share Class Rights

The Bye-laws provide that the rights attached to any class may be amended with the written consent of the holders of
75% of the issued shares of the class being affected or with the sanction of a resolution passed by a majority of the
votes cast at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class at which meeting the necessary
quorum shall be two persons at least holding or representing by proxy one-third of the issued shares of the class.

Restrictions on Transfer

The Bye-laws provide that our Board may in its absolute discretion and without assigning any reason therefore refuse
to register the transfer of a share which is not fully paid. The Board shall refuse to register a transfer unless all
applicable consents, authorizations and permissions of any governmental body or agency in Bermuda have been
obtained. If the Board refuses to register a transfer of any share the secretary of the Company shall, within three
months after the date on which the transfer was lodged with us, send to the transferor and transferee notice of the
refusal.

The Board may, in its absolute and unfettered discretion, decline to register the transfer of any shares if it believes that
registration of such shares or transfer is required under the laws of any jurisdiction and such registration has not been
effected, save that the Board may request and rely on an opinion of counsel to the transferor or transferee, in form and
substance satisfactory to the Board, that no such registration is required.

See discussion below under the heading �Restrictions Applicable to Substantial Shareholders�Company Investigations
into Interests in Shares.�

Restrictions Applicable to Substantial Shareholders

Business Combinations. See discussion above under the heading ��Voting Rights�Business Combinations.�

Amalgamations. See discussion above under the heading ��Voting Rights�Amalgamations.�

Company Investigations into Interests in Shares. The Bye-laws provide that we may, by notice in writing, require a
person whom we know is, or have reasonable cause to believe to be, or to have been within the three preceding years,
�interested� (as defined in the Bye-laws) in our issued share capital to: (1) confirm whether this is or is not the case; and
(2) if this is the case, to give further information that we require relating to the person�s interest or any other interest in
shares of the Company of which the person is aware.
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When the notice is served by us on a person who is or was interested in shares of the Company and that person fails to
give us any information required by the notice within 14 days following service thereof, that person may be subject to
certain restrictions prohibiting, among other things:

a) any transfer of the shares;
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b) the exercise of voting rights;

c) the issue of further shares; and

d) dividends and other payments (except on a winding-up of the Company).
Subject to exceptions in limited circumstances, our Board may refuse to register a transfer of shares which are subject
to restriction (a) above. In respect of an interest in shares that is less than 0.25% in nominal value of the issued shares
of their class, the restrictions extend only to prohibition on attending and voting at shareholders� meetings.

Change of Control

The Bye-laws contain certain provisions that may impede or delay an unsolicited takeover of the Company under
certain circumstances. For example, under the Bye-laws:

� we are prohibited from engaging, under certain circumstances, in a business combination with any
interested shareholder for three years following the date that the shareholder became an interested
shareholder (see discussion above under the heading ��Voting Rights�Business Combinations�);

� we are not permitted to amalgamate with any other company without certain approvals of the
amalgamation agreement relating thereto (see discussion above under the heading ��Voting
Rights�Amalgamations�);

� the Board, without further shareholder action, is permitted by the Bye-laws to issue preference shares,
in one or more series, and determine by resolution any designations, preferences, qualifications,
privileges, limitations, restrictions, or special or relative rights of additional series. The rights of
preferred shareholders may supersede the rights of common shareholders;

� the Board is authorized to expand its size and fill vacancies;

� directors may only be removed by shareholders by the affirmative vote of a majority of at least 75% of
the outstanding Common Shares or 75% of directors (other than the director in question); and

� shareholder action by written consent requires the consent of all shareholders.
Bermuda Law

There are no limitations imposed by Bermuda law or the Bye-laws on the right of shareholders who are foreign
owners and are not Bermuda residents to hold or to vote the Common Shares.
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As an exempted company, we have been designated as non-resident of Bermuda for the purposes of the Exchange
Control Act 1972 of Bermuda and, as a consequence, there are no Bermuda laws or regulations affecting our ability to
remit dividends or other payments to holders of Common Shares who are non-resident of Bermuda.

There is no income or other tax of Bermuda imposed by withholding or otherwise on any dividend paid by us to U.S.
holders of the Common Shares.

There is no reciprocal tax treaty between Bermuda and the U.S. regarding withholding taxes.
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DESCRIPTION OF SERIES A PREFERENCE SHARES

The following is a summary of the material terms of the Series A Preference Shares as contained in the Certificate of
Designation of Series A Convertible Preference Shares (the �Certificate of Designation�), which was filed with the SEC
on November 3, 2016, a copy of which is included as Exhibit 4.2 to the registration statement of which this prospectus
is a part and incorporated by reference herein. This prospectus registers the resale of up to 625,000 Series A
Preference Shares by the selling shareholders identified in this prospectus. Prospective investors are urged to carefully
read the Certificate of Designation in its entirety. Unless the context otherwise requires, definitions of terms provided
in this �Description of Series A Preference Shares,� including under ��Definitions,� apply solely for purposes of this
section.

General

We currently have 500,000,000 preference shares, par value $0.01 per share, of which 625,000 shares have been
designated as �Series A Convertible Preference Shares� and were issued and outstanding as of October 5, 2016. This
prospectus registers the resale of the Series A Preference Shares by the selling shareholders identified in this
prospectus.

Ranking

The Series A Preference Shares rank, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation (as defined below
under ��Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up�), senior to each other class or series of our shares existing on October
5, 2016 or that we may issue in the future the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series ranks
equally with, or senior to, the Series A Preference Shares, with respect to dividend rights and/or rights upon
Liquidation, including, without limitation, our Common Shares, par value $0.18 per share (all such shares, including
the Common Shares, being referred to hereinafter collectively as �Junior Shares�).

The Series A Preference Shares rank, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation, equally with each
other class or series of our shares that we may issue in the future the terms of which expressly provide that such class
or series ranks equally with the Series A Preference Shares with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation
(all such shares, including any additional series of preference shares issued after October 5, 2016 and fitting the
foregoing description, being referred to hereinafter collectively as �Parity Shares�).

The Series A Preference Shares rank, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation, junior to each other
class or series of our shares that we may issue in the future, the terms of which expressly provide that such class or
series ranks senior to the Series A Preference Shares with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation
(�Senior Shares�).

The Series A Preference Shares rank, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon Liquidation, junior to our
existing and future Indebtedness.

Dividends

The holders of Series A Preference Shares will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our Board, out of
any funds legally available therefor, dividends per share of Series A Preference Shares of an amount equal to 5% per
annum of the Stated Value of each share of such Series A Preference Shares in effect on the record date for the
applicable dividend, before any dividends will be declared, set apart for or paid upon the Junior Shares (the �Regular
Dividends�). We will not declare or pay any dividends or other distributions (whether paid in cash, in kind or in other
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property) on the Common Shares without the consent of the holders of a majority of the issued Series A Preference
Shares (the �Majority Holders�), other than (i) regularly declared quarterly cash dividends paid on the issued Common
Shares in any calendar quarter in an amount per share that is not more than the Common Dividend Threshold for such
quarter and (ii) any dividends or other distributions on the Common Shares which are paid or distributed, at the same
time as the same is paid or distributed on the Common Shares, on the Series A Preference Shares based on the number
of Common Shares into which such Series A Preference Shares could be converted on the applicable Record Date for
such dividends or other distributions. In addition, without the consent
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of the Majority Holders, we will not declare or pay any dividend or distribution that would require an adjustment to
the Conversion Rate (as defined in ��Conversion�Conversion Rate and Conversion Price�) pursuant to clauses (a)(3)(A) or
(a)(4) of the ��Anti-Dilution�Adjustments� section below where the denominator of the fraction set forth in such sections
would be zero or negative.

Payment of Dividends

Subject to compliance with the provisions of Section 54 of the Bermuda Companies Act, Regular Dividends will be
payable quarterly in arrears on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year (unless any such day
is not a Business Day, in which event such Regular Dividends will be payable on the next succeeding Business Day,
without accrual of interest thereon to the actual payment date), commencing on February 15, 2017 (each such payment
date being a �Regular Dividend Payment Date,� and the period from October 5, 2016, to the first Regular Dividend
Payment Date and each such quarterly period thereafter being a �Regular Dividend Period�). The amount of Regular
Dividends payable on the Series A Preference Shares for any period will be computed on the basis of a 360 day year
consisting of twelve thirty-day months.

Accrual of Dividends

Regular Dividends began to accrue from October 5, 2016, and, if not declared and paid, will be cumulative. Any
Regular Dividend or portion thereof that has accrued, but is unpaid, on any Regular Dividend Payment Date will
(regardless of whether such Regular Dividend is declared) be added to the Stated Value from such Regular Dividend
Payment Date until, but only until, such Regular Dividend or portion thereof is paid in full in cash. For the avoidance
of doubt, Regular Dividends will accumulate whether or not in any Regular Dividend Period we have funds legally
available for the payment of such Regular Dividends.

When and if declared, the Regular Dividends will, at our option, be paid in cash or by increasing the Stated Value of
the Series A Preference Shares. No later than the Record Date for any Regular Dividend, we will send written notice
to each holder of Series A Preference Shares stating (A) whether such Regular Dividend will be paid in cash or by
increasing the Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares and (B) if such Regular Dividend will be paid by
increasing the Stated Value, the Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares immediately before and immediately
after the increase. If we fail to send such written notice on or before the Record Date for any Regular Dividend, then
we will be deemed to have irrevocably elected to pay such Regular Dividend by increasing the Stated Value of the
Series A Preference Shares.

Record Date

Each dividend on the Series A Preference Shares will be payable to the holders of record of Series A Preference
Shares as they appear in our register of members at the Close of Business on the applicable Record Date in respect of
such dividend, which, in the case of Regular Dividends, will be the February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1, as
applicable, immediately preceding the applicable Regular Dividend Payment Date.

Priority of Dividends

Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Designation, if at any time we pay less than the total amount of
Regular Dividends then accrued, but unpaid, with respect to the Series A Preference Shares, such payment will be
distributed pro rata among the holders based upon the Stated Value of all Series A Preference Shares held by each
holder as of the Record Date for such payment. When Regular Dividends are not paid in full upon the Series A
Preference Shares, all dividends declared on Series A Preference Shares and any other class or series of Parity Shares
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or series of Parity Shares will in all cases bear to each other the same ratio as accrued, but unpaid, Regular Dividends
(for the full amount of dividends that would be payable for the most recently payable Regular Dividend Period if
dividends were declared in full on non- cumulative Parity Shares) on the Series A Preference Shares and such other
class or series of Parity Shares bear to each other.
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From and after the time, if any, that we have failed to pay all accrued, but unpaid, Regular Dividends for all prior
Regular Dividend Periods, no dividends will be declared or paid or set apart for payment, or other distribution
declared or made, upon any Junior Shares, nor will any Junior Shares be redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired
for any consideration (nor will any moneys be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption or other
purchase of any such Junior Shares) by us, directly or indirectly, until (i) all such Regular Dividends have been paid in
full or (ii) all such Regular Dividends have been or contemporaneously are declared and a sum sufficient for the
payment thereof has been or is set aside for the benefit of the holders of the Series A Preference Shares, in each case
without the consent of the Majority Holders; provided, however, that the foregoing limitation will not apply to:

(1) purchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of Junior Shares in connection with any employment contract, benefit
plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of any one or more employees, officers, directors, managers
or consultants of or to the Company or any of our Subsidiaries;

(2) an exchange, redemption, reclassification or conversion of any class or series of Junior Shares solely for any other
class or series of Junior Shares;

(3) any dividend in the form of shares, warrants, options or other rights where the dividended shares or the shares
issuable upon exercise of such warrants, options or other rights are the same shares as those on which the dividend is
being paid or ranks equal or junior to such shares; or

(4) any dividend in connection with the implementation of a shareholder rights or similar plan.

Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up

Upon our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up (each, a �Liquidation�), after satisfaction of all
liabilities and obligations to our creditors (and subject to the rights of any class or series of Senior Shares) and before
any distribution or payment will be made to holders of any Junior Shares, each holder of Series A Preference Shares
will be entitled to receive, out of our assets or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) legally available therefor,
an amount per share of Series A Preference Shares equal to the greater of:

(1) the Stated Value per share, plus an amount equal to (A) any Regular Dividends accrued, but unpaid, thereon (other
than any such Regular Dividends included in such Stated Value), plus (B) the amount per Series A Preference Share
of any other dividends that have been declared thereon but have not been paid, in each case, through the date of
Liquidation; and

(2) the amount per Series A Preference Share such holder would have received had such holder, immediately prior to
such Liquidation, converted such holder�s Series A Preference Shares into Common Shares at the then-applicable
Conversion Price, plus an amount per Series A Preference Share equal to all dividends (other than Regular
Dividends), if any, that have been declared thereon, but have not been paid, through the date of Liquidation;

(the greater of (1) and (2) is referred to herein as the �Liquidation Preference�). Holders of Series A Preference Shares,
as such, will not be entitled to any other amounts from us after they have received the Liquidation Preference and will
have no right or claim to any of our remaining assets.

If, in connection with any distribution in a liquidation, our assets or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full
the Liquidation Preference payable on the Series A Preference Shares and the corresponding amounts payable on the
Parity Shares, then such assets, or the proceeds thereof, will be paid pro rata in accordance with the full respective
amounts which would be payable on such shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid in full.
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or into any other company or other entity, or the sale, conveyance, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all
of our assets, will not constitute a Liquidation.
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Voting Rights

General

Except as otherwise required by law, the holders of the Series A Preference Shares will be entitled to (i) a number of
votes equal to the largest number of whole Common Shares into which all Series A Preference Shares held of record
by such holders could then be converted at the Record Date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote or
consent on the applicable matter or, if no such Record Date is established, at the date such vote or consent is taken or
any written consent of shareholders is first executed, (ii) except as otherwise provided herein and subject to the
requirements of applicable law, vote as a single class with the holders of Common Shares on all matters submitted for
a vote of or consent by holders of Common Shares (subject to the Shareholders� Agreement with respect to the election
of directors), (iii) notice of all shareholders� meetings (or of any proposed action by written consent) in accordance
with our Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws as if the holders of Series A Preference Shares were holders of
Common Shares and (iv) so long as the Majority Approved Holders have the right to designate a director for
nomination pursuant to the Shareholders� Agreement, vote as a class on the election of such director.

For so long as the Majority Approved Holders have the right to designate for nomination one director pursuant to the
Shareholders� Agreement, the Majority Holders will have the right to elect and appoint one member of the Board at
any meeting of our shareholders at which directors are to be elected or appointed, except such meetings for the
purpose of filling vacancies or newly created directorships (other than for the purpose of filling a vacancy or newly
created directorship to be filled by the person to be elected by the Majority Holders), voting as a separate class or by
execution of a written consent in lieu of such vote.

In the event of the death, disability, resignation or removal of a director elected or appointed by the Majority Holders,
the Majority Holders may, to the extent the Majority Approved Holders have the right to designate for nomination a
director pursuant to the Shareholders� Agreement, elect or appoint a replacement director to fill the resulting vacancy;
provided that if a director elected by the Majority Holders is removed for cause, the replacement director will not be
the same person who was removed. Other than for cause, a director elected or appointed by the Majority Holders may
not be removed by the Board or our shareholders without the prior written consent of the Majority Holders. For
purposes of this ��Voting Rights� section, �cause� means (i) a conviction for a criminal offense involving dishonesty or (ii)
engaging in conduct which brings the applicable director or us into disrepute and which results in material financial
detriment to us.

Adverse Changes

We will not and will not permit any direct or indirect Subsidiary to, without first obtaining the written consent or
affirmative vote at a meeting called for that purpose of the Majority Holders, take any of the following actions:

(1) Any change, amendment, alteration or repeal (including as a result of a merger, amalgamation, consolidation, or
other similar or extraordinary transaction) of any provisions of the Memorandum of Association or Bye-Laws that
adversely amends, modifies or affects the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series A Preference
Shares; or

(2) Any authorization, creation, issuance or reclassification of securities (or securities that are convertible into or
exercisable for such securities) (i) that would be Parity Shares or Senior Shares or (ii) of any of our Subsidiaries (other
than shares issued to us or another wholly owned Subsidiary).

Conversion
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At any time after October 5, 2018, if the VWAP per share of the Common Shares is greater than 175% of the
Conversion Price for at least 20 consecutive Trading Days ending on the date that we send the Notice of
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Mandatory Conversion, we may elect to convert (a �Mandatory Conversion�) any or all of the issued Series A
Preference Shares into Common Shares (the date selected by us for any Mandatory Conversion, the �Mandatory
Conversion Date�). In the case of a Mandatory Conversion, each Series A Preference Share then issued will be
converted into (i) the number of Common Shares equal to the quotient of (A) the sum (without duplication) of the
Stated Value per Series A Preference Share and the accrued but unpaid Regular Dividends with respect to such Series
A Preference Share, each as of the Mandatory Conversion Date, divided by (B) the Conversion Price of such Series A
Preference Share in effect as of the Mandatory Conversion Date plus (ii) cash in lieu of fractional shares; provided,
however, that if the Mandatory Conversion Date occurs on or after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend that has
been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, or for any other dividends that have been declared on the Series A
Preference Shares, and on or before the immediately following Regular Dividend Payment Date or the payment date
for such other dividend, as applicable, then (x) on such Regular Dividend Payment Date or other payment date, as
applicable, such Regular Dividend or other dividend, as applicable, will be paid on the Series A Preference Shares
notwithstanding the Mandatory Conversion and (y) the amount of such Regular Dividend will not be included in the
sum in clause (A) above; provided, further, that we will in no event fix a Mandatory Conversion Date that is on or
after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend and on or before the immediately following Regular Dividend Payment
Date unless we have declared and set aside the full amount of Regular Dividends due on such Regular Dividend
Payment Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Certificate of Designation, we will not have the right
to effect a Mandatory Conversion unless a Registration Statement that covers the resale of all then-outstanding
Registrable Securities is, at all times during the period that begins on the date that we send the Notice of Mandatory
Conversion and ends on the Mandatory Conversion Date, effective under the Securities Act and the holders of the
Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares issued upon conversion thereof are not prohibited under any
agreement or policy of ours applicable to such holders from selling the Series A Preference Shares, or the Common
Shares issued or issuable upon conversion thereof, pursuant to such Registration Statement (whether pursuant to any
�blackout period� or otherwise).

Notice of Mandatory Conversion

If we elect to effect a Mandatory Conversion, we will provide written notice of the Mandatory Conversion to each
holder of Series A Preference Shares (such notice, a �Notice of Mandatory Conversion�). The Mandatory Conversion
Date selected by us will be no less than 30, nor more than 60, days after the date on which we provide the Notice of
Mandatory Conversion to each such holder. The Notice of Mandatory Conversion will state, as appropriate: (i) the
Mandatory Conversion Date selected by us; and (ii) the Conversion Rate as in effect on the Mandatory Conversion
Date, the number of Common Shares to be issued (and the amount of cash in lieu of fractional shares, if any, to be
paid) to such holder upon conversion of each Series A Preference Share held by such holder and, if applicable, the
amount of Regular Dividends or other dividends, if any, to be paid to such holder on the next Regular Dividend
Payment Date or other payment date, as applicable.

Conversion at Option of Holder

At any time, each holder of Series A Preference Shares will have the right, at such holder�s option, subject to the
conversion procedures set forth in the Certificate of Designation, to convert any or all of such holder�s Series A
Preference Shares, and the Series A Preference Shares to be converted will be converted into (i) a number of Common
Shares equal to the quotient of (A) the sum (without duplication) of the Stated Value and the accrued and unpaid
Regular Dividends with respect to such Series A Preference Shares, each as of the applicable Conversion Date,
divided by (B) the Conversion Price as of the applicable Conversion Date plus (ii) cash in lieu of fractional shares;
provided, however, that if such Conversion Date for the conversion of any Series A Preference Share occurs on or
after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend that has been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, or for any
other dividends that have been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, and on or before the immediately
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such Regular Dividend Payment Date or other payment date, as applicable, such Regular Dividend or other dividend,
as applicable, will be paid on such Series A Preference Share notwithstanding such conversion and (y) the amount of
such Regular Dividend will not be included in the sum in clause (A) above.
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Conversion Rate and Conversion Price

When the Series A Preference Shares were issued on October 5, 2016, the �Conversion Rate� meant, 10 Common
Shares per $1,000 Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares, subject to adjustment as provided in the Certificate
of Designation. The �Conversion Price� means, as of any time, for each Series A Preference Share, a dollar amount
equal to $1,000 divided by the Conversion Rate in effect as of such time. The Conversion Rate has been adjusted such
that, as of the date hereof, the Conversion Rate equals approximately 10.6529 Common Shares per $1,000 Stated
Value of the Series A Preference Shares, subject to adjustment as provided in the Certificate of Designation, and the
Conversion Price is $93.8712.

Effect of Conversion

Except to the extent set forth in ��Mandatory Conversion� and ��Conversion at Option of Holder,� effective immediately
prior to the Close of Business on the Conversion Date applicable to any Series A Preference Shares, dividends
(including Regular Dividends) will no longer accrue or be declared on any such Series A Preference Shares and such
Series A Preference Shares will cease to be outstanding.

Record Holder of Underlying Securities as of Conversion Date

The Person or Persons entitled to receive the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of Series A Preference Shares
will be treated for all purposes as the record holder(s) of such Common Shares as of the Close of Business on the
Conversion Date for such conversion. As promptly as practicable on or after the Conversion Date (and in no event
later than three Trading Days thereafter), we will issue the number of whole Common Shares issuable upon
conversion (and deliver payment of cash in lieu of fractional shares). Such Common Shares will be issued, at the
option of the applicable holder, in certificated or uncertificated form. Any such certificate or certificates, if applicable,
will be delivered by us to the appropriate holder(s) by mailing certificates evidencing the Common Shares to such
holder(s) at their respective addresses as set forth in the applicable conversion notice. Any such uncertificated
Common Shares, if applicable, will be registered in the name and delivered to the DTC or other applicable account
directed by the applicable holder. In the event that a holder does not by written notice designate the name in which
Common Shares and, to the extent applicable, cash to be delivered upon conversion of Series A Preference Shares
should be registered or paid, or the manner in which such Common Shares and, if applicable, cash should be
delivered, we will be entitled to register and deliver such Common Shares and, if applicable, cash in the name of the
holder and in the manner shown in our register of members.

Status of Converted or Acquired Shares

Without limiting the right of holders to receive any dividend on a payment date for such dividend as set forth under
��Mandatory Conversion� or ��Conversion at Option of Holder,� (A) Series A Preference Shares duly converted in
accordance with the Certificate of Designation, or otherwise acquired by us in any manner whatsoever, will be
canceled upon the acquisition thereof; and (B) all such shares will upon their cancelation become authorized but
unissued preference shares, without designation as to series until such shares are once more designated as part of a
particular series by the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws.

Reservation of Shares

We will at all times when the Series A Preference Shares are issued reserve and keep available, free from preemptive
rights, for issuance upon the conversion of Series A Preference Shares, such number of our authorized but unissued
Common Shares as will from time to time be sufficient to permit the conversion of all issued Series A Preference
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Shares. Prior to the delivery of any securities which we will be obligated to deliver upon conversion of the Series A
Preference Shares, we will comply with all applicable laws and regulations which require action to be taken by us.
Each Common Share, when issued upon conversion of any Series A Preference Share, will be duly authorized, validly
issued, fully paid and non-assessable and will be listed on each stock exchange, if any, on which the Common Shares
are then listed.
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Anti-Dilution

Adjustments

Subject to the section ��When No Adjustment Required� below, the Conversion Rate will be subject to adjustment under
the following circumstances:

(1) If a subdivision or consolidation of Common Shares or a reclassification of Common Shares into a greater or lesser
number of Common Shares occurs, then the Conversion Rate will be adjusted based on the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Open of Business on the effective date of such
subdivision, consolidation or reclassification;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the Open of Business on such effective date;

OS0 = the number of Common Shares issued immediately prior to the Open of Business on such effective date; and

OS1 = the number of Common Shares that would be issued immediately after, and solely as a result of, such
subdivision, consolidation or reclassification.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (1) will be effective immediately after the Open of Business on such
effective date. If any such event is declared but does not occur, the Conversion Rate will be readjusted, effective as of
the date we announce that such event will not occur, to the Conversion Rate that would then be in effect if such event
had not been declared.

(2) If we make a distribution, on all or substantially all Common Shares, of any rights, options or warrants entitling
the holders thereof, for a period of not more than 60 calendar days after the Record Date of such distribution, to
subscribe for or purchase Common Shares at a price per share that is less than the average of Closing Price per
Common Share for the 10 consecutive Trading Days ending on, and including, the Trading Day immediately before
the date such distribution is announced, then the Conversion Rate will be increased based on the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Open of Business on the Record Date for such
distribution;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the Open of Business on such Record Date for such
distribution;

OS = the number of Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Open of Business on such Record Date;
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X = the total number of Common Shares issuable pursuant to such rights, options or warrants; and

Y = a number of Common Shares obtained by dividing (x) the aggregate price payable to exercise such rights, options
or warrants by (y) the average of the Closing Prices per Common Share for the ten 10 consecutive Trading Days
ending on, and including, the Trading Day immediately before the date such distribution is announced.

To the extent that Common Shares are not delivered after the expiration of such rights, options or warrants (including
as a result of such rights, options or warrants not being exercised), the Conversion Rate will be readjusted to the
Conversion Rate that would then be in effect had the increase to the Conversion Rate for such distribution been made
on the basis of delivery of only the number of Common Shares actually delivered upon exercise of such rights, option
or warrants. To the extent such rights, options or warrants are not so distributed, the Conversion Rate will be
readjusted to the Conversion Rate that would then be in effect had such distribution not been announced.

In determining whether any rights, options or warrants entitle the holders thereof to subscribe for or purchase
Common Shares at a price per share that is less than the average of the Closing Prices per Common Share for the 10
consecutive Trading Days ending on, and including, the Trading Day immediately before the date of the distribution
of such rights, options or warrants is announced, and in determining the aggregate price payable to exercise such
rights, options or warrants, there will be taken into account any consideration we receive for such rights, options or
warrants and any amount payable on exercise thereof, with the value of such consideration, if not cash, to be
determined by the Board.

(3) (A) If we make a distribution, on all or substantially all Common Shares, of any Capital Shares, evidences of
indebtedness or other assets or property of the Company, or any rights, options or warrants to acquire Capital Shares
of the Company or other securities (excluding (x) any dividend or distribution for which an adjustment to the
Conversion Rate is required pursuant to clause (1), (2), (3)(B) or (4) of this ��Adjustments� section (y) rights issued or
otherwise distributed pursuant to a shareholder rights plan, except to the extent provided in ��Adjustment for
Reorganization Events�Shareholder Rights Plans,� or (z) a distribution solely pursuant to a Reorganization Event, as to
which the provisions set forth under ��Adjustment for Reorganization Events�Reorganization Events� will apply), then the
Conversion Rate will be increased based on the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Open of Business on the Record Date for such
distribution;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the Open of Business on such Record Date;

SP = the average of the Closing Prices per Common Share for the 10 consecutive Trading Days ending on, and
including, the Trading Day immediately before the Ex-Dividend Date for such distribution; and

FMV = the fair market value (as determined by the Board), as of such Ex-Dividend Date, of the Capital Shares,
evidences of indebtedness, assets, property, rights, options or warrants distributed per Common Share pursuant to such
distribution.
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Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (3)(A) shall be effective immediately after the Open of Business on such
Record Date. To the extent such distribution is declared but not paid or made, or such rights, options or warrants are
not exercised before their expiration (including as a result of being redeemed or terminated), the Conversion Rate
shall be readjusted, effective as of the date we announce that such distribution shall not be paid or made or the date
such rights, options or warrants expire or are redeemed or terminated, as applicable, to the Conversion Rate that would
then be in effect had the adjustment been made on the basis of only the distribution, if any, actually made or paid or on
the basis of the distribution of only such rights, options or warrants, if any, that were actually exercised, if at all.
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(B) If we make a dividend or distribution, on all or substantially all Common Shares, of any capital shares of any class
or series, or similar equity interest, of or relating to an Affiliate, a Subsidiary or other business unit of the Company,
and such capital shares or equity interest is listed or quoted (or will be listed or quoted upon the consummation of the
transaction) on a U.S. national securities exchange (a �Spin-Off�), then the Conversion Rate will be increased based on
the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Open of Business on the Record Date for such dividend
or distribution;

CR1 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately after to the Open of Business on such Record Date;

FMV = the product of (x) the average of the Closing Prices per share or unit of the capital shares or equity interests
distributed in such Spin-Off over the 10 consecutive Trading Day period (the �Spin-Off Valuation Period�) beginning
on, and including, the Ex-Dividend Date for such dividend or distribution (such average to be determined as if
references to Common Shares in the definitions of Closing Price and Trading Day were instead references such capital
shares or equity interests); and (y) the number of shares or units of such capital shares or equity interests distributed
per Common Share in such Spin-Off; and

SP = the average of the Closing Prices per Common Share over the Spin-Off Valuation Period.

The adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to this clause (3)(B) will be calculated as of the Close of Business on
the last Trading Day of the Spin-Off Valuation Period but will be given effect immediately after the Open of Business
on the Record Date for the Spin-Off, with retroactive effect. If any Series A Preference Share is converted and the
Conversion Date occurs during the Spin-Off Valuation Period, then, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the
Certificate of Designation, we will, if necessary, delay the settlement of such conversion until the third Business Day
after the last day of the Spin-Off Valuation Period.

(4) If any cash dividend or other distribution is made on all or substantially all Common Shares, then the Conversion
Rate will be increased based on the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Open of Business on the Record Date for such dividend
or distribution;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the Open of Business on such Record Date;

SP = the Closing Price per Common Share on the Trading Day immediately before the Ex-Dividend Date for such
dividend or distribution; and
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Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (4) shall be effective immediately after the Open of Business on such
Record Date. If any such dividend or distribution is declared but is not paid, the Conversion Rate shall be readjusted,
effective as of the date the Company announces that such dividend or distribution shall not be paid, to the Conversion
Rate that would then be in effect if such dividend or distribution had not been declared.

(5) If we or one or more of our Subsidiaries purchases any Common Shares, where the cash and value (determined in
good faith by the Board as of the date as of which the agreement to make such purchase is made (the �Common Share
Repurchase Date�)) of any other consideration included in the payment per Common Share purchased exceeds the
Closing Price per Common Share on the Common Share Repurchase Date (or, if such date is not a Trading Day, the
immediately preceding Trading Day), other than any such purchase made in an �open market� transaction at the
then-prevailing price or through an �accelerated share repurchase� on customary terms, then the Conversion Rate will be
increased based on the following formula:

where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the Close of Business on the Common Share Repurchase
Date;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the Close of Business on the Common Share Repurchase
Date;

AC = the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Board), as of the Common Share Repurchase Date, of
the aggregate value of all cash and any other consideration paid or payable for such Common Shares in such purchase
(�Purchased Shares�);

OS1 = the number of Common Shares issued as of the Common Share Repurchase Date, excluding any Purchased
Shares;

OS0 = the number of Common Shares issued as of the Common Share Repurchase Date, including any Purchased
Shares; and

SP = the Closing Price per Common Share on the Common Share Repurchase Date (or, if such date is not a Trading
Day, the immediately preceding Trading Day);

provided, however, that if the application of such adjustment with respect to such purchase would result in a decrease
to the Conversion Rate, then no such adjustment will be made for such purchase. The adjustment will become
effective immediately after the Close of Business on the Common Share Repurchase Date. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in this clause (3), we will not, and will not permit any of our Subsidiaries to, purchase any Common
Shares if such purchase would require an adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to this clause (3) that would
require shareholder approval pursuant to the listing standards of the NYSE, unless we have first obtained such
shareholder approval.

In the event that we or any of our Subsidiaries become obligated to purchase Common Shares in a transaction that
resulted in an adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to this clause (3) but is permanently prevented by
applicable law from effecting such purchase, or such purchase is rescinded, then the Conversion Rate will be
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readjusted to be the Conversion Rate that would then be in effect if such adjustment had not been made.

(6) If we, at any time or from time to time while any of the Series A Preference Shares are issued, issue Common
Shares or any other security convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Common Shares (such Common
Shares or other security, �Equity-Linked Securities�) (other than (i) an Excluded Issuance, (ii) Common Shares issued
upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares and (iii) rights, options, warrants or other distributions to which the
holders of Series A Preference Shares are entitled to participate), the Conversion Rate will be increased based on the
following formula:
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where,

CR0 = the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to the issuance of such Equity-Linked Securities;

CR1 = the new Conversion Rate in effect immediately after the issuance of such Equity-Linked Securities;

AC = the fair value (which, if other than cash, will be determined in good faith by the Board as of the time of the
issuance of such Equity-Linked Securities) of the aggregate consideration paid or payable for such Equity-Linked
Securities (which, in the case of Equity-Linked Securities that are convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for
Common Shares, will be the fair value (determined as aforesaid) of the aggregate consideration paid or payable for
such Equity-Linked Securities plus the fair value (determined as aforesaid) of the aggregate consideration payable to
fully convert, exercise or exchange such Equity-Linked Securities);

OS0 = the number of Common Shares issued immediately before such issuance of Equity-Linked Securities;

OS1 = the number of Common Shares issued immediately after the issuance of Equity-Linked Securities and giving
effect to any Common Shares issuable upon conversion, exercise or exchange of such Equity-Linked Securities; and

SP = the Closing Price per Common Share on the date of issuance of such Equity-Linked Securities;

provided, however, that if the application of such adjustment with respect to such issuance would result in a decrease
to the Conversion Rate, then no such adjustment will be made for such issuance. The adjustment will become
effective immediately after such issuance. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this clause (4), we will not
issue any Equity-Linked Securities if such issuance would require an adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to
this clause (4) that would require shareholder approval pursuant to the listing standards of the NYSE, unless we have
first obtained such shareholder approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this ��Adjustments� section, in no event will the Conversion Rate be
adjusted to an amount that is less than zero.

Calculation of Adjustments

All adjustments to the Conversion Rate will be calculated by us to the nearest 1/10,000th of one Common Share (with
5/100,000ths rounded upward). No adjustment to the Conversion Rate will be required unless such adjustment would
require an increase or decrease of at least 1% of the Conversion Rate; provided, however, that any such adjustment
that is not required to be made will be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment; and
provided, further, that all adjustments deferred and not given effect will be made on each Conversion Date such that
all such adjustments are given effect in calculating the number of Common Shares and amount of cash, if any, due
upon the related conversion.

When No Adjustment Required

Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Designation, the Conversion Rate will not be adjusted (A) for the
issuance of Common Shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Shares or carrying the
right to purchase any of the foregoing or (B) for the repurchase of Common Shares.
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Except as provided in clause (a)(3)(A) of ��Adjustments� above and ��Adjustment for Reorganization Events�Shareholder
Rights Plans� below, no adjustment of the Conversion Rate will be made as a result of the issuance of, the distribution
of separate certificates representing, the exercise or redemption of, or the termination or invalidation of, rights
pursuant to any shareholder rights plans.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment to the Conversion Rate will be made:

(A) upon the issuance of any Common Shares pursuant to any present or future plan, approved by the Board,
providing for the reinvestment of dividends or interest payable on our securities and the investment of additional
optional amounts in Common Shares under any plan, approved by the Board, in which purchases are made at market
prices on the date or dates of purchase, without discount, and whether or not we bear the ordinary costs of
administration and operation of the plan, including brokerage commissions;

(B) upon the issuance of any Common Shares or options or rights to purchase such shares pursuant to any present or
future employee, director, manager or consultant benefit plan or program of or assumed by us or any of our
Subsidiaries or of any employee agreements or arrangements or programs, in each case approved by the Board;

(C) upon the issuance of any Common Shares pursuant to any option, warrant, right, or exercisable, exchangeable or
convertible security issued as of October 5, 2016; or

(D) for a change in the par value of the Common Shares.

Notwithstanding any other provision in the Certificate of Designation, the Conversion Rate will not be adjusted on
account of a transaction or other event otherwise requiring an adjustment pursuant to clause (2), (3) or (4) set forth
above under ��Adjustments� if each holder of Series A Preference Shares participates in such transaction or event on an
as-converted basis without having to convert any of such holder�s Series A Preference Shares.

Successive Adjustments

For the avoidance of doubt, after an adjustment to the Conversion Rate, any subsequent event requiring an adjustment
will cause an adjustment to such Conversion Rate as so adjusted.

Other Adjustments

Subject to the applicable listing standards of the NYSE, we may, but will not be required to, make such increases in
the Conversion Rate, in addition to those required by this ��Anti-Dilution� section, as the Board considers to be advisable
in order to avoid or diminish any income tax to any holders of Common Shares resulting from any dividend or
distribution of shares or issuance of rights or warrants to purchase or subscribe for shares or from any event treated as
such for income tax purposes or for any other reason.

Notice of Adjustments

Whenever the Conversion Rate is adjusted, we will as soon as reasonably practicable following the occurrence of an
event that requires such adjustment (or if we are not aware of such occurrence, as soon as reasonably practicable after
becoming so aware) or the date we make an adjustment pursuant to the ��Other Adjustments� section above:

(1) compute the adjusted applicable Conversion Rate and prepare and transmit to the Conversion Agent an officer�s
certificate setting forth the applicable Conversion Rate, the method of calculation thereof in reasonable detail, and the
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(2) provide a written notice to the holders of the Series A Preference Shares of the occurrence of such event and a
statement in reasonable detail setting forth the method by which the adjustment to the applicable Conversion Rate was
determined and setting forth the adjusted applicable Conversion Rate.
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Fractional Shares

No fractional Common Shares will be delivered to the holders of Series A Preference Shares upon conversion. In lieu
of fractional Common Shares otherwise issuable, holders of Series A Preference Shares will be entitled to receive an
amount in cash equal to the fraction of a Common Share, multiplied by the Closing Price of the Common Shares on
the applicable Conversion Date. In order to determine whether the number of Common Shares to be delivered to a
holder of Series A Preference Shares upon the conversion of such holder�s Series A Preference Shares will include a
fractional share (in lieu of which cash would be paid hereunder), such determination will be based on the aggregate
number of Series A Preference Shares of such holder that are being converted with the same Conversion Date.

Adjustment for Reorganization Events

Reorganization Events

If there occurs:

(1) any reclassification, statutory exchange, merger, amalgamation, consolidation or other similar business
combination of the Company with or into another Person, in each case, pursuant to which the Common Shares (but
not the Series A Preference Shares) are changed or converted into, or exchanged for, or represent solely the right to
receive, cash, securities or other property;

(2) any sale, transfer, lease or conveyance to another Person of all or substantially all of our property and assets, in
each case pursuant to which the Common Shares (but not the Series A Preference Shares) are converted into cash,
securities or other property; or

(3) any statutory exchange of our securities with another Person (other than in connection with a merger or
amalgamation) or reclassification, recapitalization or reorganization of the Common Shares (but not the Series A
Preference Shares) into other securities,

(each of which is referred to as a �Reorganization Event,� and such cash, securities or other property, the �Exchange
Property,� and the kind and amount of Exchange Property that a holder of one Common Share would be entitled to
receive on account of such Reorganization Event (without giving effect to any arrangement not to issue fractional
shares of securities or other property), an �Exchange Property Unit�), then, at the effective time of such Reorganization
Event, without the consent of the holders of Series A Preference Shares and subject to the provisions of the ��Exchange
Property Election� section below, (x) the consideration due upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares, and the
adjustments to the Conversion Rate, will be determined in the same manner as if each reference to any number of
Common Shares in the Certificate of Designation were instead a reference to the same number of Exchange Property
Units; (y) for purposes of the definition of �Fundamental Change,� the term �Common Shares� will be deemed to mean
the common equity, if any, forming part of such Exchange Property; and (z) the VWAP or Closing Price of any
Exchange Property Unit or portion thereof that does not consist of a class of securities will be the fair value of such
Exchange Property Unit or portion thereof, as applicable, determined in good faith by us (or, in the case of cash
denominated in U.S. dollars, the face amount thereof). If such Reorganization Event provides for different treatment
of Common Shares held by our Affiliates and non-Affiliates or by the Person with which we amalgamated or
consolidated or into which we merged or which merged into us or to which such sale or transfer was made, as the case
may be (any such Person, a �Constituent Person�), or an Affiliate of a Constituent Person, then the composition of the
Exchange Property and the Exchange Property Unit will be determined based on the cash, securities or other property
that were distributed in such Reorganization Event to holders of Common Shares that are not Constituent Persons or
our Affiliates or Constituent Persons. In addition, if the kind or amount of cash, securities or other property receivable
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ours or a Constituent Person, then the composition of the Exchange Property and the Exchange Property Unit will be
determined based on the weighted average, as determined by us in good faith, of the types and amounts of
consideration received by the holders of Common Shares.

Exchange of Property Election

In the event that the holders of the Common Shares have the opportunity to elect the form of consideration to be
received in a Reorganization Event, the Exchange Property that the holders of Series A Preference Shares will be
entitled to receive will be determined by the Majority Holders on or before the earlier of (i) the deadline for elections
by holders of Common Shares and (ii) two Business Days before the anticipated effective date of such Reorganization
Event.

Successive Reorganization Events

The provisions described above will similarly apply to successive Reorganization Events.

Reorganization Event Notice

We will, no less than 20 Business Days prior to the occurrence of any Reorganization Event, provide written notice to
the holders of Series A Preference Shares of such occurrence of such event and of the kind and amount of cash,
securities or other property that constitutes the Exchange Property and the Exchange Property Unit. Failure to deliver
such notice will not affect the operation of this ��Adjustment for Reorganization Events� section.

Limitation on Reorganization Events

We will not enter into any agreement for a transaction constituting a Reorganization Event unless (i) such agreement
provides for or does not interfere with or prevent (as applicable) conversion of the Series A Preference Shares into the
Exchange Property in a manner that is consistent with and gives effect to this ��Adjustment for Reorganization Events�
section and (ii) to the extent that we are not the surviving Company in such Reorganization Event or will be dissolved
in connection with such Reorganization Event, proper provision is made in the agreements governing such
Reorganization Event for the conversion of the Series A Preference Shares into Exchange Property and, in the case of
a Reorganization Event specified in clause (2) under the first paragraph of this ��Adjustment for Reorganization Events�
section, an exchange of Series A Preference Shares for the shares of the Person to whom the Company�s assets are
conveyed or transferred, having voting powers, preferences, and relative, participating, optional or other special rights
as nearly as equal as possible to those provided in the Certificate of Designation.

Shareholder Rights Plans

If we distribute any rights pursuant to any shareholder rights plan on or after October 5, 2016, then such distribution
will not require an adjustment to the Conversion Rate except to the extent provided in the immediately following
sentence. If any Common Shares are issued upon conversion of any Series A Preference Share and, at the time of such
conversion, we have in effect any shareholder rights plan, then the holder of such Series A Preference Share will be
entitled to receive, in addition to, and concurrently with the delivery of, the consideration otherwise payable under the
Certificate of Designation upon such conversion, the rights set forth in such shareholder rights plan, unless such rights
have separated from the Common Shares at such time, in which case such separation will require, at the time of such
separation, an adjustment to the Conversion Rate pursuant to clause (a)(3)(A) of the ��Adjustments� section above as if,
at the time of such separation, we had made a distribution of the type referred to therein on all of our outstanding
Common Shares (subject, for the avoidance of doubt, to readjustment in accordance with the last sentence of clause
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Redemption and Repurchase

Redemption at the Option of the Company

Subject to compliance with Section 42 of the Bermuda Companies Act, the Series A Preference Shares may be
redeemed, in whole or in part, on any date on or after November 15, 2024, at our option, upon giving notice of
redemption, at a cash redemption price per share of Series A Preference Shares equal to the sum of (1) the Stated
Value per share of the Series A Preference Shares to be redeemed plus (2) an amount per share equal to accrued, but
unpaid, Regular Dividends on such share of Series A Preference Shares (other than any such Regular Dividends
included in such Stated Value) to, but excluding, the date of redemption; provided, however, that if the redemption
date occurs on or after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend that has been declared on the Series A Preference
Shares, or for any other dividends that have been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, and on or before the
immediately following Regular Dividend Payment Date or the payment date for such other dividend, as applicable,
then (x) on such Regular Dividend Payment Date or other payment date, as applicable, such Regular Dividend or
other dividend, as applicable, will be paid on the Series A Preference Shares notwithstanding such redemption; and (y)
the amount of such Regular Dividend will not be included in the sum in clause (1) or (2) above; provided, further, that
we will in no event fix a redemption date that is on or after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend and on or before
the immediately following Regular Dividend Payment Date unless we will have declared and set aside the full amount
of Regular Dividends due on such Regular Dividend Payment Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the
Certificate of Designation, we will not have the right to redeem any Series A Preference Shares unless a Registration
Statement that covers the resale of all then-outstanding Registrable Securities is, at all times during the period that
begins on the date the notice of such redemption is sent and ends on the applicable redemption date, effective under
the Securities Act and the holders of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares issued upon conversion
thereof are not prohibited under any agreement or policy of ours applicable to such holders from selling the Series A
Preference Shares, or the Common Shares issued or issuable upon conversion thereof, pursuant to such Registration
Statement (whether pursuant to any �blackout period� or otherwise).

Notice of Redemption

Notice of each redemption of Series A Preference Shares will be given pursuant the Certificate of Designation. Such
mailing will be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption. Any notice mailed
will be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure
duly to give such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of Series A
Preference Shares designated for redemption will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any
other Series A Preference Shares. Each notice of redemption given to a holder will state: (1) the redemption date; (2)
the number of Series A Preference Shares to be redeemed and, if less than all the Series A Preference Shares held by
such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such Series A Preference Shares to be redeemed from such holder and
(3) the redemption price. For the avoidance of doubt, holders of Series A Preference Shares will have the right to
convert all or a portion of the Series A Preference Shares at any time prior to the date fixed for redemption, and any
Common Shares resulting from such conversion will not be redeemed.

Effectiveness of Redemption

If notice of redemption has been duly given and if, on or before the redemption date specified in the notice, all funds
necessary for the redemption of all Series A Preference Shares called for redemption (together, if such redemption
date occurs on or after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend, or a Record Date for any other dividend, and on or
before the immediately following Regular Dividend Payment Date or the payment date for such other dividends, as
applicable, with the full amount of Regular Dividends or such other dividends, as applicable, payable or deliverable
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on such Regular Dividend Payment Date or other payment date as applicable) have been deposited by us, in trust for
the pro rata benefit of the holders of such Series A Preference Shares, with a bank or trust company doing business in
the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and
selected by the Board, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then on and after such redemption date,
Regular Dividends will (except as stated in the Certificate of Designation) cease to accrue on all such Series A
Preference Shares, all such Series A Preference Shares will, unless previously converted, be redeemed, and (except as
stated in the Certificate of Designation) all rights with respect to such Series A
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Preference Shares (including voting and consent rights) shall forthwith on such redemption date cease and terminate,
except that the right of the holders to receive the amount payable on such redemption (together with any such Regular
Dividends or other dividends payable pursuant to the Certificate of Designation) from such bank or trust company,
without interest will survive such cessation and termination. Any funds unclaimed at the end of five years from such
redemption date will, to the extent permitted by law, be released to us, after which time the holders of such Series A
Preference Shares will look only to us for payment of the redemption price of such Series A Preference Shares (or
such Regular Dividends or other dividends).

Repurchase at the Option of the Holder

Subject to compliance with Section 42A of the Bermuda Companies Act, at any time on or after November 15, 2024,
a holder of Series A Preference Shares may irrevocably elect to require us to repurchase any or all of such holder�s
Series A Preference Shares in accordance with the next succeeding sentence by giving irrevocable, written notice to us
at a repurchase price per share, payable in cash, equal to the sum (without duplication) of (1) the Stated Value per
share of the Series A Preference Shares plus (2) an amount per share equal to accrued, but unpaid, Regular Dividends
to, but excluding, the date of repurchase. Such notice will state the number of Series A Preference Shares to be
repurchased and the date of repurchase, which must be a Business Day and will be at least 30 but no more than 60
calendar days following the delivery of such notice. Any notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been
duly given, whether or not we receive such notice.

Repurchase at the Option of the Holder Upon a Fundamental Change

Upon the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, each holder of Series A Preference Shares will have the right to
require us to repurchase, subject to compliance with Section 42A of the Bermuda Companies Act, by irrevocable,
written notice to us, any or all of such holder�s Series A Preference Shares. Upon such repurchase, we will pay or
deliver, as applicable, at such holder�s election, either (i) cash in an amount equal to 101% of the Stated Value of such
Series A Preference Shares plus the accrued, but unpaid, Regular Dividends on such shares (other than any such
Regular Dividends included in such Stated Value) to, but excluding, the Repurchase Date; or (ii) the amount of cash
and/or other assets such holder would have received had such holder, immediately prior to such Fundamental Change,
converted such Series A Preference Shares and, if applicable, been entitled to participate in such Fundamental Change
as a holder of Common Shares; provided, however, that if the Repurchase Date occurs on or after the Record Date for
a Regular Dividend that has been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, or for any other dividends that have
been declared on the Series A Preference Shares, and on or before the immediately following Regular Dividend
Payment Date or the payment date for such other dividend, as applicable, then (x) on such Regular Dividend Payment
Date or other payment date, as applicable, such Regular Dividend or other dividend, as applicable, will be paid on the
Series A Preference Shares notwithstanding any repurchase of Series A Preference Shares; and (y) the amount of such
Regular Dividend will not be included in the sum in clause (i) above; provided, further, that we will in no event fix a
Repurchase Date that is on or after the Record Date for a Regular Dividend and on or before the immediately
following Regular Dividend Payment Date unless we will have declared and set aside the full amount of Regular
Dividends due on such Regular Dividend Payment Date.

No later than the effective date of the occurrence of a Fundamental Change, we will send notice to the holders of
record of Series A Preference Shares stating (1) that a Fundamental Change has occurred, (2) that all Series A
Preference Shares tendered in accordance with the Certificate of Designation will be repurchased on the repurchase
date (the �Repurchase Date�), which will be specified in such notice and must be a Business Day of our choosing that is
no earlier than 30, nor later than 60 calendar days after the date such notice is sent and (3) the procedures that holders
of the Series A Preference Shares must follow in order for their Series A Preference Shares to be repurchased. Any
notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice.
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such shares to us no later than the Close of Business on the second (2nd) Business Day immediately preceding the
Repurchase Date.
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Definitions

As used with respect to the Series A Preference Shares in this section:

�Affiliate� has the meaning given to it in Rule 144(a) under the Securities Act.

�Beneficially Own� means �beneficially own� as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act or any successor provision
thereto.

�Board� means the board of directors of the Company.

�Business Day� means a day that is a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday and is not a day on which
banking institutions in New York, New York or Akron, Ohio, generally are authorized or obligated by law, regulation
or executive order to close.

�Capital Shares� means any and all shares, interests, rights to purchase, warrants, options, participations or other
equivalents of or interests in (however designated) shares issued by the us.

�Close of Business� means 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on any Business Day.

�Closing Price� of the Common Shares for any Trading Day means the closing sale price per share (or, if no closing sale
price is reported, the average of the last bid price and the last ask price per share or, if more than one in either case, the
average of the average last bid prices and the average last ask prices per share) of the Common Shares on such
Trading Day as reported in composite transactions for the principal U.S. national or regional securities exchange on
which the Common Shares are then listed. If the Common Shares are not listed on a U.S. national or regional
securities exchange on such Trading Day, then the Closing Price will be the last quoted bid price per Common Share
on such Trading Day in the over-the-counter market as reported by OTC Markets Group Inc. or a similar organization.
If the Common Shares are not so quoted on such Trading Day, then the Closing Price will be the average of the
mid-point of the last bid price and the last ask price per Common Share on such Trading Day from a nationally
recognized independent investment banking firm selected by us and the Majority Holders.

�Common Dividend Threshold� means, with respect to any calendar quarter, 130% of the arithmetic average of the
regular, quarterly cash dividends per Common Share, if any, declared by us during the preceding four (4) calendar
quarters. For the avoidance of doubt, if we do not declare any regular, quarterly cash dividend in any calendar quarter,
then, for purposes of calculating such average, an amount equal to zero will be used for such calendar quarter.

�Common Shares� means the Company�s common shares, par value $0.18 per share.

�Company� means Signet Jewelers Limited

�Conversion Agent� means the Person acting as conversion agent for the Series A Preference Shares.

�Conversion Date� means the date on which a holder complies with the conversion procedures set forth in the
Certificate of Designation.

�DTC� means the Depository Trust Company.
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�Ex-Dividend Date� means, with respect to an issuance, dividend or distribution on the Common Shares, the first date
on which Common Shares trade on the applicable exchange or in the applicable market, regular way, without the right
to receive such issuance, dividend or distribution (including pursuant to due bills or similar arrangements required by
the relevant stock exchange). For the avoidance of doubt, any alternative trading convention on the applicable
exchange or market in respect of the Common Shares under a separate ticker symbol or CUSIP number will not be
considered �regular way� for this purpose.

�Excluded Issuance� means any issuances of (i) Capital Shares or options to purchase Capital Shares to employees,
directors, managers, officers or consultants of or to the Company or any of our Subsidiaries pursuant to a share option
or incentive compensation or similar plan outstanding as of October 5, 2016 or, subsequent to October 5, 2016,
approved by the Board or a duly authorized committee of the Board, (ii) securities pursuant to any bona fide
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merger, amalgamation, joint venture, partnership, consolidation, dissolution, liquidation, tender offer, recapitalization,
reorganization, share exchange, business combination or similar transaction or any other direct or indirect acquisition
by us, whereby our securities comprise, in whole or in part, the consideration paid in such transaction, (iii) Common
Shares issued at a price equal to or greater than the Closing Price per Common Share on the Trading Day immediately
preceding the earlier of (a) the date on which the applicable sale or issuance is publicly announced and (b) the date on
which the price for such sale or issuance is agreed or fixed, and (iv) securities convertible into, exercisable or
exchangeable for Common Shares issued with an exercise or conversion price equal to or greater than the Closing
Price on the Trading Day immediately preceding the earlier of (x) the date on which the sale or issuance of such
securities is publicly announced and (y) the date on which the price for such sale or issuance is agreed or fixed.

�Fundamental Change� means the occurrence of any of the following on or after October 5, 2016:

(1) any Person (other than an Affiliate of the Initial Shareholders (as defined in the Shareholders� Agreement) or any of
such Affiliate�s Affiliates) will Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, through a purchase, merger, amalgamation or
other acquisition transaction or series of transactions, shares of the Company�s Capital Shares entitling such Person to
exercise a majority of the total voting power of all classes of our Voting Shares, other than an acquisition by the
Company, any of our wholly owned Subsidiaries or any of our employee benefit plans (for purposes of this clause (1),
�Person� will include any syndicate or group that would be deemed to be a �person� under Section 13(d)(3) of the
Exchange Act);

(2) the Company (i) amalgamates, merges or consolidates with or into any other Person, another Person amalgamates
or merges with or into the Company, or the Company conveys, sells, transfers or leases all or substantially all of the
assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to another Person or (ii) engages in any recapitalization,
reclassification or other transaction in which all or substantially all of the Common Shares are exchanged for or
converted into cash, securities or other property, in each case other than a merger, amalgamation, consolidation or
sale:

(I) which is effected solely to change our jurisdiction of incorporation and results in a reclassification, conversion or
exchange of issued Common Shares solely into common shares of the surviving entity; or

(II) pursuant to which the Persons that directly or indirectly Beneficially Owned all classes of our common equity
immediately before such transaction directly or indirectly Beneficially Own, immediately after such transaction, more
than 50% of all classes of common equity of the surviving, continuing or acquiring company or other transferee (or
the parent thereof) in substantially the same proportions vis-à-vis each other as immediately before such transaction;
or

(3) the Common Shares cease to be listed or quoted on any of the NYSE, The NASDAQ Global Select Market or The
NASDAQ Global Market (or any of their respective successors),

provided that notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction or transactions will not constitute a Fundamental Change
pursuant to clause (1) or (2) above if at least 90% of the consideration received or to be received by holders of
Common Shares (other than cash payments for fractional shares or pursuant to statutory appraisal rights) in
connection with such transaction or transactions consists of common shares or ordinary shares (or American
depositary receipts or American depositary shares representing common shares or ordinary shares), and any associated
rights, listed or quoted on the NYSE, The NASDAQ Global Select Market or The NASDAQ Global Market (or any of
their respective successors (or which will be so listed or quoted when issued or exchanged in connection with such
transaction or transactions) and such transaction or transactions constitute a Reorganization Event whose Exchange
Property consists of such consideration.
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�Majority Approved Holders� has the meaning ascribed to it in the Shareholders� Agreement.

�Market Disruption Event� means, with respect to any date, the occurrence or existence, during the one-half hour period
ending at the scheduled close of trading on such date on the principal U.S. national or regional securities exchange or
other market on which the Common Shares are listed for trading or trades, of any material suspension or limitation
imposed on trading (by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the relevant exchange or
otherwise) in the Common Shares or in any options, contracts or future contracts relating to the Common Shares.

�NYSE� means The New York Stock Exchange.

�Open of Business� means 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on any Business Day.

�Person� means any individual, company, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, association, joint stock
company, trust, unincorporated organization, government or agency or political subdivision thereof or any other
entity.

�Record Date� means, with respect to any dividend, distribution or other transaction or event in which the holders of
Common Shares or Series A Preference Shares, as applicable, have the right to receive any cash, securities or other
property or in which the Common Shares or Series A Preference Shares (or other applicable security), as applicable, is
exchanged for or converted into any combination of cash, securities or other property, the date fixed for determination
of shareholders entitled to receive such cash, securities or other property (whether such date is fixed by the Board or
by statute, contract, the Certificate of Designation or otherwise).

�Registrable Securities� has the meaning ascribed to it in the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Registration Rights Agreement� means that certain Registration Rights Agreement, entered into as of October 5, 2016,
between the Company and the Purchasers named therein.

�Registration Statement� has the meaning ascribed to it in the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Securities Act� means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

�Shareholders� Agreement� means the shareholders� agreement entered into as of October 5, 2016, by and between us,
Green Equity Investors VI, L.P., Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P., LGP Associates VI-A LLC and LGP
Associates VI-B LLC, as may be amended from time to time.

�Stated Value� means $1,000.00 per share of Series A Preference Shares, as adjusted based on accrued but unpaid
dividends that are added to the Stated Value.

�Subsidiary� means any company or corporate entity for the Company owns, directly or indirectly, an amount of the
voting securities, other voting rights or voting partnership interests of which is sufficient to elect at least a majority of
its board of directors or other governing body (or, if there are no such voting interests, more than 50% of the equity
interests of such company or corporate entity).

�Trading Day� means any day on which (i) trading in the Common Shares generally occurs on the principal U.S.
national or regional securities exchange on which the Common Shares are then listed or, if the Common Shares are
not then listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, on the principal other market on which the Common
Shares are then traded; and (ii) there is no Market Disruption Event. If the Common Shares are not so listed or traded,
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�Voting Shares� means Capital Shares of the class or classes pursuant to which the holders thereof have the general
voting power under ordinary circumstances (determined without regard to any classification of directors) to elect one
or more members of the Board (without regard to whether or not, at the relevant time, Capital Shares of any other
class or classes (other than Common Shares) will have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any
contingency).
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�VWAP� means, for any VWAP Trading Day, the per share volume-weighted average price of the Common Shares as
displayed under the heading �Bloomberg VWAP� on Bloomberg page �SIG <EQUITY> AQR� (or, if such page is not
available, its equivalent successor page) in respect of the period from the scheduled open of trading until the
scheduled close of trading of the primary trading session on such VWAP Trading Day (or, if such volume-weighted
average price is unavailable, the market value of one Common Share on such VWAP Trading Day, determined, using
a volume-weighted average price method, by a nationally recognized independent investment banking firm selected
by us and the Majority Holders. The VWAP will be determined without regard to after-hours trading or any other
trading outside of the regular trading session.

�VWAP Market Disruption Event� means, with respect to any date, (i) the failure by the principal U.S. national or
regional securities exchange on which the Common Shares are then listed, or, if the Common Shares are not then
listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange, the principal other market on which the Common Shares are
then traded, to open for trading during its regular trading session on such date; or (ii) the occurrence or existence, for
more than one half hour period in the aggregate, of any suspension or limitation imposed on trading (by reason of
movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the relevant exchange or otherwise) in the Common Shares or in
any options, contracts or future contracts relating to the Common Shares, and such suspension or limitation occurs or
exists at any time before 1:00 p.m., New York City time, on such date.

�VWAP Trading Day� means a day on which (i) there is no VWAP Market Disruption Event; and (ii) trading in the
Common Shares generally occurs on the principal U.S. national or regional securities exchange on which the
Common Shares are then listed or, if the Common Shares are not then listed on a U.S. national or regional securities
exchange, on the principal other market on which the Common Shares are then traded. If the Common Shares are not
so listed or traded, then �VWAP Trading Day� means a Business Day.
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MATERIAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

Bermuda Tax Considerations

At the present time, there is no Bermuda income or profits tax, withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax,
estate duty or inheritance tax payable by us or by our shareholders in respect of our Common Shares, Series A
Preference Shares or other shares. We have obtained assurance from the Minister of Finance of Bermuda under the
Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1966 that, in the event that any legislation is enacted in Bermuda
imposing any tax computed on profits or income, or computed on any capital asset, gain or appreciation or any tax in
the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax, such tax will not, until March 31, 2035, be applicable to us or to any of our
operations or to our Common Shares, Series A Preference Shares, other shares, debentures or other obligations except
insofar as such tax applies to persons ordinarily resident in Bermuda or is payable by us in respect of real property
owned or leased by us in Bermuda.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to U.S. Holders
(as defined below) of the ownership and disposition of the Series A Preference Shares and the Common Shares. It
does not purport to be a complete analysis of all potential tax effects. The discussion is based upon the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), U.S. Treasury Regulations (�Treasury Regulations�) issued thereunder,
Internal Revenue Service (the �IRS�) rulings and pronouncements and judicial decisions now in effect, all of which are
subject to change at any time. Any such change may be applied retroactively in a manner that could adversely affect
U.S. Holders of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares. This discussion does not address all of the
U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to a U.S. Holder in light of such holder�s particular
circumstances or to holders subject to special rules, such as banks, financial institutions, U.S. expatriates, insurance
companies, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, �controlled foreign corporations,� �passive
foreign investment companies,� dealers in securities or currencies, traders in securities, partnerships or other
pass-through entities or investors in such entities, U.S. Holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, U.S.
Holders who have elected mark-to-market tax accounting, U.S. Holders who received the Series A Preference Shares
as compensation, a person owning, actually or constructively, 10% or more of our voting shares, tax-exempt
organizations or pension funds and persons holding the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares as part of a
�straddle,� �hedge,� �constructive sale� or �conversion transaction� or other integrated transaction. Tax consequences may
vary depending upon the particular circumstances of an investor. Moreover, the effect of any applicable U.S. state,
local or non-U.S. tax laws, U.S. federal alternative minimum tax, U.S. federal Medicare tax on certain investment
income, or U.S. federal estate or gift tax laws is not discussed. This discussion is limited to U.S. Holders who will
hold the Series A Preference Shares and the Common Shares received in respect thereof as �capital assets� within the
meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment).

As used herein, �U.S. Holder� means a beneficial owner of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares who
or that is or is treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as:

� an individual that is a citizen or resident of the U.S.;

� a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the
U.S., any state thereof, or the District of Columbia;
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� an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or

� a trust, if (i) a U.S. court can exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one
or more U.S. persons can control all substantial trust decisions, or (ii) it has in effect a valid election to
be treated as a U.S. person.

No rulings from the IRS have been or are expected to be sought with respect to the matters discussed below. There
can be no assurance that the IRS will not take a different position concerning the tax consequences of
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the ownership or disposition of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares or that any such position would
not be sustained. If a partnership or other entity taxable as a partnership holds the Series A Preference Shares or the
Common Shares, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of
the partnership.

We urge you to consult your own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning and
disposing of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares, as well as any tax consequences that may arise
under the laws of any state, municipal, foreign or other non-U.S. taxing jurisdiction and the possible effects of
changes in U.S. federal or other tax laws.

Distributions on the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares

In general, distributions with respect to the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares, as applicable (other
than distributions on the Series A Preference Shares as a result of increasing the stated value of the Series A
Preference Shares, described below under ��Increases of the Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares�), will be
taxable as dividends to the extent paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under
U.S. federal income tax principles. Such income will be includible in the gross income of a U.S. Holder as ordinary
income on the day actually or constructively received by such holder.

To the extent that the amount of any distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits for a
taxable year, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles, the amount of the distribution in excess of
current and accumulated earnings and profits will first be treated as a tax-free return of capital, causing a reduction
(but not below zero) in the adjusted tax basis of a U.S. Holder�s Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares, as
applicable. The amount of any remaining excess will be taxed as capital gain recognized on a sale or exchange as
described below under ��Dispositions.�

U.S. Holders will not be eligible for reduced rates of taxation on any dividend paid out of current and accumulated
earnings and profits with respect to the Series A Preference Shares. However, non-corporate U.S. Holders will
generally be eligible for reduced rates of taxation on any dividend paid out of current and accumulated earnings and
profits with respect to the Common Shares, provided that the Common Shares continue to be readily tradable on an
established securities market in the United States, and certain holding period and other requirements are met
(including that we are not a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, for the taxable year in which the dividend
is paid or the immediately preceding taxable year (see discussion below)). U.S. Holders should consult their own tax
advisor regarding the availability of the reduced dividend tax rate in light of their particular circumstances. The
amount of the dividend on the Series A Preference Shares and the Common Shares will be treated as foreign-source
dividend income to U.S. Holders and will not be eligible for the dividends received deduction generally allowed to
U.S. corporations under the Code.

Increases of the Stated Value of the Series A Preference Shares

If we make a distribution on the Series A Preference Shares by increasing the stated value of the Series A Preference
Shares, the tax treatment to a U.S. Holder of such distribution will depend on whether (a) the Series A Preference
Shares are treated as participating in corporate growth to any significant extent as determined under the Treasury
Regulations and (b) cash distributions are also made on the Common Shares. We believe that the Series A Preference
Shares will be treated as participating in corporate growth to a significant extent. This view, however, is not free from
doubt. There can be no assurance that the IRS will not take the position that the Series A Preference Shares should not
be treated as participating in corporate growth to any significant extent as determined under the Treasury Regulations.
In general, a U.S. Holder is bound by our determination, unless the U.S. Holder explicitly discloses that it is taking a
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contrary position in a statement attached to its timely filed tax return for the taxable year in which it acquires the
stock.

Assuming that the Series A Preference Shares are treated as participating in corporate growth to a significant extent, if
cash distributions are made on the Common Shares (as is expected to be the case), the tax treatment of a distribution
on the Series A Preference Shares in the form of increasing the stated value of the Series A Preference Shares is not
entirely clear. Such a distribution may be a taxable distribution to the U.S. Holder, as described above under
��Distributions on the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares,� if a cash
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distribution is made on the Common Shares within 36 months before or after a distribution on the Series A Preference
Shares in the form of increasing the stated value of the Series A Preference Shares. If no such cash distribution is
made on the Common Share, such a distribution may be a tax-free distribution. U.S. Holders should consult their own
tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of such a distribution if cash distributions are also
made on the Common Shares.

If the Series A Preference Shares are treated as not participating in corporate growth to any significant extent, whether
or not cash distributions are also made on the Common Shares, the fair market value of the amount of increase in the
stated value of the Series A Preference Shares will be treated as a taxable distribution to the U.S. Holder, as described
above under ��Distributions on the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares.� A U.S. Holder�s tax basis in such
Series A Preference Shares will increase by the fair market value of the amount of increase in the stated value of the
Series A Preference Shares on the distribution date.

Adjustment of Conversion Rate

The conversion rate of the Series A Preference Shares is subject to adjustment under certain circumstances. The
Treasury Regulations treat a holder of Series A Preference Shares as having received a constructive distribution
includible in such holder�s U.S. income in the manner described above under ��Distributions on the Series A Preference
Shares or the Common Shares,� if and to the extent that certain adjustments (or failures to make adjustments) in the
conversion rate increase the holder�s proportionate interest in our earnings and profits. Adjustments to the conversion
rate made pursuant to a bona fide reasonable adjustment formula that has the effect of preventing dilution in the
interests of the holders of the Series A Preference Shares will generally not be considered to result in a constructive
dividend distribution. However, certain of the possible conversion rate adjustments provided in the Series A
Preference Shares (including, without limitation, an increase in the conversion rate to reflect a taxable dividend paid to
holders of Common Shares) generally will give rise to a deemed taxable dividend to the holders of the Series A
Preference Shares to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits. Thus, under certain circumstances
in the event of a deemed distribution, U.S. Holders may recognize taxable income even though such holders may not
receive any cash or property. For certain information reporting purposes, we are required to determine the date and
amount of any such constructive distributions. Recently proposed Treasury Regulations, which we may rely on prior
to the issuance of final regulations, specify how the date and amount of constructive distributions are determined.

Conversion of Series A Preference Shares into Common Shares

A U.S. Holder generally will not recognize gain or loss upon the conversion of the Series A Preference Shares into
Common Shares, except that (1) a U.S. Holder�s receipt of cash (if any) in respect of accrued and unpaid dividends or
dividends in arrears will be taxable as described above under ��Distributions on the Series A Preference Shares or the
Common Shares,� (2) a U.S. stockholder�s receipt of Common Shares (if any) in respect of accrued and unpaid
dividends or dividends in arrears will be taxable as described above under ��Distributions on the Series A Preference
Shares or the Common Shares� as if the U.S. Holder had received cash in respect of such accrued dividends or
dividends in arrears equal to the fair market value of such Common Shares on the date of conversion and (3) a U.S.
Holder�s receipt of cash in lieu of a fractional share of Common Shares will result in capital gain or loss (measured by
the difference between the cash received in lieu of the fractional share of Common Shares and the U.S. Holder�s tax
basis in the fractional share of Common Shares).

Except as discussed in the next sentence, a U.S. Holder�s basis in Common Shares received upon conversion of the
Series A Preference Shares (and any fractional Common Shares treated as received and then exchanged for cash) will
equal the basis of the converted Series A Preference Shares and the holding period of such Common Shares will
include the holding period of the converted Series A Preference Shares. Common Shares received in payment of
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the date of conversion, and a new holding period which will commence on the day after the conversion.
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Dispositions

A U.S. Holder will generally recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, or other taxable disposition of the Series A
Preference Shares or the Common Shares equal to the difference between the amount realized and the U.S. Holder�s
adjusted tax basis in the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares. This gain or loss generally will be capital
gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder has held the Series A Preference Shares or
the Common Shares for more than one year. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate U.S. Holders are subject to tax
at a reduced rate. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Such gain or loss will generally be
U.S.-source gain or loss for foreign tax credit purposes.

In the event that a U.S. Holder�s Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares are redeemed (or if we purchase a U.S.
Holder�s Common Shares in an open market transaction), the treatment of the transaction for U.S. federal income tax
purposes will depend on whether the redemption (or purchase) by us qualifies as a sale of the Series A Preference
Shares or Common Shares under Section 302 of the Code. If the redemption (or purchase) by us qualifies as a sale, the
U.S. Holder will generally be treated as described in the immediately preceding paragraph. If the redemption (or
purchase) by us does not qualify as a sale, the U.S. Holder will be treated as receiving a distribution with the tax
consequences described above under ��Distributions on the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares.� A
redemption (or purchase) by us of the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares generally will be treated as a
sale of such shares (rather than as a distribution) if the redemption (or purchase) by us (i) is �substantially
disproportionate� with respect to the U.S. Holder, (ii) results in a �complete termination� of the U.S. Holder�s interest in
us or (iii) is �not essentially equivalent to a dividend� with respect to the U.S. Holder. U.S. Holders should consult with
their own tax advisors as to whether any of the foregoing tests are satisfied and the tax consequences of a redemption
(or purchase) by us.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

We believe that we will not be considered a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes for our current year or in
future years. However, since PFIC status depends upon the composition of a company�s income and assets and the
market value of its assets from time to time, there can be no assurance that we will not be considered a PFIC for any
taxable year. If we are treated as a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder held our Series A Preference
Shares or Common Shares, certain adverse consequences could apply.

If we are or become a PFIC in a taxable year in which we pay a dividend or the prior taxable year, the preferred
dividend rate discussed above with respect to dividends paid to non-corporate U.S. Holders in respect of the Common
Shares would not apply. In addition, if we are a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder holds our
Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares, the U.S. Holder will be subject to special tax rules with respect to any
�excess distribution� that it receives and any gain it realizes from a sale or other disposition (including a pledge) of our
Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares, unless the U.S. Holder makes a �mark-to-market� election as discussed
below. Distributions a U.S. Holder receives in a taxable year that are greater than 125% of the average annual
distributions it received during the shorter of the three preceding taxable years or the U.S. Holder�s holding period for
the shares will be treated as an excess distribution. Under these special tax rules:

� the excess distribution or gain will be allocated ratably over the U.S. Holder�s holding period for the
shares,
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� the amount allocated to the current taxable year, and any taxable year prior to the first taxable year in
which we became a PFIC, will be treated as ordinary income, and

� the amount allocated to each other year will be subject to the highest tax rate in effect for that year and
the interest charge generally applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposed on the resulting tax
attributable to each such year.

The tax liability for amounts allocated to years prior to the year of disposition or �excess distribution� cannot be offset
by any net operating losses for such years, and gains (but not losses) realized on the sale of the Series A Preference
Shares or Common Shares cannot be treated as capital, even if the U.S. Holder holds the shares as capital assets.
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An election to mark-to-market our shares would be available to U.S. Holders to possibly mitigate the adverse
consequences resulting from PFIC status, provided that our shares are traded as �marketable stock.� An election to treat
us as a qualifying fund, however, would not be available to such holders of our Series A Preference Shares or
Common Shares because we would not provide the information you need to make the election.

If we are considered a PFIC for the current taxable year or any future taxable year, U.S. Holders may be required to
file an annual information return for such year, whether or not such holder disposes of any shares or received any
distributions in respect of the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares during such year. U.S. Holders should
consult their own tax advisor with respect to any PFIC considerations.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, IRS information reporting will apply to a U.S. Holder with respect to payments of dividends on, and the
proceeds of the sale of, the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares that are made within the United States or
through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries (unless such U.S. Holder is an exempt recipient such as a
corporation and establishes this fact). Backup withholding may apply to payments described in the preceding sentence
if a U.S. Holder fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number or a certification that it is not subject to
backup withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup
withholding rules from a payment to a U.S. Holder will be allowed as a refund or credit against such holder�s U.S.
federal income tax, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Tax Reporting

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals and certain entities will be required to report information with respect to
such U.S. Holder�s investment in �specified foreign financial assets� on IRS Form 8938 (Statement of Specified Foreign
Financial Assets), subject to certain exceptions. Holding the Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares
constitutes a specified foreign financial asset for these purposes. Persons who are required to report specified foreign
financial assets and fail to do so may be subject to substantial penalties. Potential investors are urged to consult their
tax advisers regarding the foreign financial asset and other reporting obligations and their application to an investment
in our Series A Preference Shares or Common Shares.
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SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

This prospectus relates to the offer and sale from time to time by the selling shareholders of up to 625,000 Series A
Preference Shares and up to 7,049,507 Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares.
Each Series A Preference Share will be convertible into a number of Common Shares determined by dividing the sum
of the stated value of such Series A Preference Share on the conversion date and any accrued and unpaid dividends
with respect to such Series A Preference Share by the applicable conversion price. The stated value of the Series A
Preference Shares may increase as a result the payment of dividends not paid in cash. The conversion price is equal to
$1,000 divided by the applicable conversion rate. The current conversion rate is approximately 10.6529 Common
Shares per Series A Preference Share and is subject to adjustment as described in �Description of Series A Preference
Shares.� The Series A Preference Shares were originally issued and sold on October 5, 2016 pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Investment Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2016 (the �Investment Agreement�), among us, Green
Equity Investors VI, L.P. and Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P. (the �Fund Investors�). The Series A Preference
Shares offered pursuant to this prospectus were issued to the selling shareholders in a transaction that was exempt
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, we, the Fund Investors, LGP Associates VI-A LLC and LGP Associates VI-B
LLC (together with the Fund Investors, the �selling shareholders�) entered into a Registration Rights Agreement, dated
as of October 5, 2016 (the �Registration Rights Agreement�). Pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, we agreed
to register for resale under the Securities Act the offer and sale of all of the Series A Preference Shares, the Common
Shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares and any other securities issuable upon any stock
split, dividend or other distribution, recapitalization or similar event with respect to such shares. All of the Series A
Preference Shares and the Common Shares issuable upon the conversion of the Series A Preference Shares being
offered under this prospectus may be sold by the selling shareholders named below. However, the registration of these
securities does not necessarily mean the selling shareholders will offer or sell any of their securities under this
prospectus or otherwise.

In connection with the Investment Agreement, we and the selling shareholders also entered into a Shareholders�
Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2016 (the �Shareholders� Agreement�). Pursuant to the Shareholders� Agreement, so
long as the selling shareholders beneficially own at least (a) 35% of the Series A Preference Shares beneficially owned
by the selling shareholders as of October 5, 2016 (or the total number of the Common Shares (on an �as-converted
basis�) beneficially owned by the selling shareholders as of October 5, 2016) (or a combination thereof, without
duplication) or (b) at least 5% of the total number of issuable Common Shares (on an �as-converted basis�), the selling
shareholders have the right to designate one designee to be nominated by us for election to our Board. So long as the
selling shareholders are entitled to designate one director for nomination to the Board, the holders of the Series A
Preference Shares, voting separately as a class, have the right to elect one member of the Board, and the selling
shareholders also have the right to appoint one non-voting observer to attend all meetings of the Board.

Except as otherwise permitted by the Shareholders� Agreement, until the earliest of (a) October 5, 2018, (b) the date on
which no nominee designated by the selling shareholders serves on our Board and the selling shareholders are no
longer entitled to designate a director for nomination to the Board (or have irrevocably waived their right) and (c) the
occurrence of a fundamental change, the selling shareholders may not transfer any Series A Preference Shares or any
of the Common Shares issued upon conversion of such Series A Preference Shares.

In addition, pursuant to the Shareholders� Agreement, the selling shareholders are subject to certain standstill
restrictions pursuant to which the selling shareholders are restricted, subject to certain customary exceptions
(including purchases up to a 2% threshold), from purchasing additional securities of the Company, publicly proposing
any merger or other extraordinary corporate transaction, initiating any shareholder proposal or soliciting proxies until
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the later of (a) October 5, 2019 and (b) the date on which no nominee designated by the selling shareholders serves on
our Board and the selling shareholders are no longer entitled to designate a director for nomination to the Board (or
have irrevocably waived their right).

The foregoing descriptions of the Investment Agreement, Registration Rights Agreement and Shareholders� Agreement
are subject to, and qualified in their entirety by, the full text of the respective agreements which are incorporated by
reference herein.

We do not know when or in what amounts the selling shareholders may offer the securities for sale. The selling
shareholders might not sell any or all of the securities offered by this prospectus. Because the selling shareholders may
offer all or some of the securities pursuant to this offering, and because, to our knowledge, no sale
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of any of the securities is currently subject to any agreements, arrangements or understandings, we cannot estimate the
number of the securities that will be held by the selling shareholders after completion of the offering. The information
set forth below is based on information provided by or on behalf of the selling shareholders prior to the date hereof.
Information about the selling shareholders may change over time and changed information will be set forth in
supplements to this prospectus if and when necessary.

Series A Preference
Shares Common Shares

Name of Selling Shareholder

Number
of

Shares
Beneficially
Owned
and

Offered
Hereby

Number
of

Shares
Owned After
Completion

of the
Offering(1)

Percent
of

Shares
Beneficially
Owned After
the Offering

Number
of

Shares
Beneficially
Owned
and

Offered
Hereby(2)

Number
of

Shares
Owned After
Completion

of the
Offering(1)

Percent
of

Shares
Beneficially
Owned After

the
Offering

Leonard Green Partners(3)
Green Equity Investors VI, L.P. 387,522 �  �  4,370,944 �  �  
Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P. 230,963 �  �  2,605,081 �  �  
LGP Associates VI-A LLC(4) 470 �  �  5,300 �  �  
LGP Associates VI-B LLC(4) 6,045 �  �  68,182 �  �  

Total 625,000 �  7,049,507 �  

(1) Assumes that each selling shareholder will sell all Series A Preference Shares and/or Common Shares offered by
it pursuant to this prospectus.

(2) Represents Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares based on an initial
conversion rate of approximately 10.6529 and up to 391,448 additional Common Shares in the aggregate that
may be issued upon conversion of the Series A Preference Shares pursuant to their terms. Any fractional shares
issued upon conversion will be cashed out.

(3) Leonard Green & Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (�LGP�), and its individual controlling affiliates,
including Jonathan D. Sokoloff who is a director of the Company, may be deemed to control all Series A
Preference Shares and/or Common Shares beneficially owned by the selling shareholders. LGP and such affiliates
(including Mr. Sokoloff) each disclaim beneficial ownership of the Series A Preference Shares and/or Common
Shares held by the selling shareholders, except to the extent of their respective pecuniary interest, if any, therein.

(4) These selling shareholders acquired their Series A Preference Shares as affiliate transferees of Green Equity
Investors VI, L.P. and Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P. pursuant to the Investment Agreement.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The securities offered hereby are being registered to permit the holders of the securities the ability to offer and sell the
securities from time to time after the date of this prospectus. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the offering
by the selling shareholders of the Series A Preference Shares or the Common Shares. We will bear the fees and
expenses incurred by us in connection with our obligation to register the offered securities. If the securities are sold
through underwriters or broker-dealers, the selling shareholders will be responsible for underwriting discounts and
selling commissions.

As used in this section, �selling shareholders� includes donees, pledgees, transferees or other successors-n-interest
selling shares received from a selling shareholder as a gift, pledge, partnership distribution or other non-sale related
transfer after the date of this prospectus.

The securities offered hereby may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions at fixed prices, at prevailing
market prices at the time of sale, at prices related to the prevailing market price, at varying prices determined at the
time of sale or at negotiated prices. These prices will be determined by the selling shareholders or by agreement
between such holders and underwriters or dealers who may receive fees or commissions in connection with such sale.
Such sales may be effected by a variety of methods, including the following:

� in market transactions, including transactions on a national securities exchange or quotations service or
over-the-counter market;

� in privately negotiated transactions;

� through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options
exchange or otherwise;

� in a block trade in which a broker-dealer will attempt to sell a block of securities as agent but may
position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

� through the settlement of short sales, in each case subject to compliance with the Securities Act and
other applicable securities laws;

� through one or more underwriters on a firm commitment or best-efforts basis;

� an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange, if any;

� ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;
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� purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;

� broker-dealers may agree with the selling shareholders to sell a specified number of such securities at a
stipulated price per security;

� directly to one or more purchasers;

� through agents; or

� in any combination of the above or by any other legally available means.
The selling shareholders may enter into derivative transactions with third parties or sell securities not covered by this
prospectus to third parties in privately negotiated transactions.
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The selling shareholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers, which may in turn engage in short
sales of the offered securities, short and deliver the securities to close out such short positions, or loan or pledge the
securities that in turn may sell such securities. The selling shareholders also may transfer, donate and pledge offered
securities, in which case the transferees, donees, pledgees or other successors in interest may be deemed selling
shareholders for purposes of this transaction.

To our knowledge, there are currently no plans, arrangements or understandings between the selling shareholders and
any underwriter, broker-dealer or agent regarding the sale by the selling shareholders of the offered securities. The
selling shareholders may decide to sell all or a portion of the securities offered by them pursuant to this prospectus or
may decide not to sell any securities under this prospectus. In addition, the selling shareholders may transfer, sell, or
devise the securities by other means not described in this prospectus. Any securities covered by this prospectus that
qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act (�Rule 144�) may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 rather than
pursuant to this prospectus.

Underwriters, broker-dealers (including selling shareholders who are registered broker-dealers) or agents participating
in the distribution of the offered securities are deemed to be �underwriters� within the meaning of the Securities Act. If
the selling shareholders, including those who are affiliates of registered broker-dealers, are deemed to be underwriters
within the meaning of the Securities Act, then profits on the sale of securities by the selling shareholders, and any
commission received by any other underwriter, broker-dealer or agent, may be deemed to be underwriting
commissions under the Securities Act. Selling shareholders that are deemed to be underwriters are subject to statutory
liabilities, including, but not limited to, those of Sections 11, 12 and 17 of the Securities Act and Rule 10b-5 under the
Exchange Act.

The selling shareholders and any other person participating in the distribution will be subject to the applicable
provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, including, without limitation,
Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales by the selling shareholders and any other relevant
person of any of the securities. Furthermore, Regulation M may restrict the ability of any person engaged in the
distribution of securities to engage in market-making activities with respect to the securities being distributed. All of
the above may affect the marketability of the securities and the ability of any person or entity to engage in
market-making activities with respect to the securities.

To the extent required, the securities to be sold, the names of the selling shareholders, the respective purchase prices
and public offering prices, the names of any agents, dealer or underwriter, any applicable commissions or discounts
with respect to a particular offer will be set forth in an accompanying prospectus supplement or, if appropriate, a
post-effective amendment to the registration statement that includes this prospectus.

In order to comply with the securities laws of some states, if applicable, the securities must be sold in such
jurisdictions only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in some states the securities may not
be sold unless it has been registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from registration or
qualification requirements is available and is complied with.

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement between us and the selling shareholders, we have agreed to indemnify in
certain circumstances the selling shareholders against certain liabilities under the Securities Act. The selling
shareholders have agreed to indemnify us in certain circumstances against certain liabilities, including certain
liabilities under the Securities Act. The selling shareholders may indemnify any underwriter that participates in
transactions involving the sale of Common Shares or Series A Preference Shares against certain liabilities, including
liabilities arising under the Securities Act.
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Our Common Shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �SIG.� On November 3, 2016, the
closing price of our Common Shares on the New York Stock Exchange was $80.78 per share. The Series A Preference
Shares are not listed on any securities exchange, and we do not intend to list the Series A Preference Shares on any
such exchange.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, Conyers Dill & Pearman Limited, will pass upon
the validity of the Series A Preference Shares and the Common Shares offered by this prospectus.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Signet Jewelers Limited and subsidiaries as of January 30, 2016 and January
31, 2015, and for the 52 week periods ended January 30, 2016, January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014, and
management�s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of January 30, 2016, have
been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and
auditing.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THIS PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
The expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, expected to be incurred by the Registrant in
connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being registered under this Registration Statement are
estimated to be as follows:

SEC Registration Fee $ 72,437.50
Printing Expenses (1) 
Legal Fees and Expenses (1) 
Accounting Fees and Expenses (1) 
Miscellaneous (1) 

Total $ (1) 

(1) These fees are calculated based on the number of issuances and amount of securities offered and accordingly
cannot be estimated at this time.

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officer
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Our bye-laws provide for indemnification of officers and directors against
all actions, costs, charges, liabilities, losses, damages and expenses incurred or suffered by such party or their heirs,
executors or administrators, as an officer or director of the Company; provided that such indemnification shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty. We may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of
any director or officer against any liability incurred by him under the Companies Act 1981 (the �Bermuda Act�) in his
capacity as a director or officer or indemnifying such director or officer in respect of any loss arising or liability
attaching to him by virtue of any rule of law in respect of any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust of
which the director or officer may be guilty in relation to the Company or any subsidiary thereof. We may advance
moneys to a director or officer for the costs, charges and expenses incurred by the director or officer in defending any
civil or criminal proceedings against him, on condition that the director or officer shall repay the advance if any
allegation of fraud or dishonesty is proved against him.

The directors and officers of the Company are covered by directors� and officers� insurance policies maintained by us.
In addition, the Company has agreed to provide contractual indemnities to the directors and specified officers of the
Company pursuant to a deed of indemnity. The deed of indemnity, among other things, requires the Company to fully
indemnify and keep indemnified each indemnified person on demand against all actions, claims, liabilities, charges,
demands, proceedings, investigations and judgements that may be made against him or her which he or she may suffer
or incur as a consequence of, or which relate to or arise, directly or indirectly, from his or her powers, duties or
responsibilities as a director or officer of the Company or any relevant company.
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Item 16. Exhibits

Exhibit Description

  1.1+ Form of Underwriting Agreement.

  3.1 Memorandum of Association of Signet Limited and Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name to
Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A filed September 11, 2008 (�Form 8-A�)).

  3.2 Amended and Restated Bye-laws of Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed September 10, 2014).

  4.1 Form of common share certificate of Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Form 8-A).

  4.2 Certificate of Designation of Series A Convertible Preference Shares (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 3, 2016).

  4.3 Investment Agreement dated as of August 24, 2016, by and among Signet Jewelers Limited, Green
Equity Investors VI, L.P. and Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 25, 2016).

  4.4 Shareholders� Agreement dated as of October 5, 2016, by and among Signet Jewelers Limited, Green
Equity Investors VI, L.P., Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P., LGP Associates VI-A LLC and LGP
Associates VI-B LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
October 6, 2016).

  4.5 Registration Rights Agreement, made and entered into as of October 5, 2016, by and among Signet
Jewelers Limited, Green Equity Investors VI, L.P., Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P., LGP Associates
VI-A LLC and LGP Associates VI-B LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 6, 2016).

  5.1* Opinion of Conyers Dill & Pearman Limited.

12.1* Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preference Dividends.

23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP.

23.2* Consent of Conyers Dill & Pearman Limited (included in Exhibit 5.1).

24.1* Powers of Attorney (included on signature pages).

+ To be filed by amendment or by a report filed under the Exchange Act and incorporated herein by reference.
* Indicates documents filed herewith.

II-2

Edgar Filing: SIGNET JEWELERS LTD - Form S-3ASR

Table of Contents 91



Table of Contents

Item 17. Undertakings

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

1. To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

i. To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

ii. To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or
the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a
fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would
not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum
offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in
the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20% change in the maximum
aggregate offering price set forth in the �Calculation of Registration Fee� table in the effective registration
statement;

iii. To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

Provided, however, that:

Paragraphs (1)(i), (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) of this section do not apply if the registration statement is on Form S-3 and the
information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed
with or furnished to the SEC by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.

2. That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

3. To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

4. That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
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i. Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the
registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration
statement; and

ii. Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration
statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for
the purpose of providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be
deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of
prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering
described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person
that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration
statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided,
however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration
statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration
statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of
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contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the
registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document
immediately prior to such effective date.

5. That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in
the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of
securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting
method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means
of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be
considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

i. Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be
filed pursuant to Rule 424;

ii. Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or
used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;

iii. The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information
about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

iv. Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

6. That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant�s
annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where
applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan�s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new
registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall
be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

7. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers, and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant
has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the
Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other
than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer, or controlling person of the
registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer, or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of
its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the
question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed
by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Akron, State of Ohio on November 4,
2016.

Signet Jewelers Limited

By: /s/ Michele L. Santana
Name: Michele L. Santana

Title: Chief Financial Officer
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned constitutes and appoints each of Michele L.
Santana, Lynn Dennison, Mark Jenkins and Laurel Krueger, or any of them, each acting alone, his or her true and
lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for such person and in his or her
name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign this Registration Statement on Form S-3 (including all
post-effective amendments), and any registration statement relating to the offering covered by this registration
statement and filed pursuant to Rule 462 under the Securities Act of 1933, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the SEC, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
each acting alone, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to
be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming that any such attorney-in-fact and agent, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities indicated on the 4th day of November, 2016.

Signature Title

/s/    Mark Light        

Mark Light

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer and
Director)

/s/    Michele L. Santana        

Michele L. Santana

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/    H. Todd Stitzer        

H. Todd Stitzer

Chairman of the Board
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/s/    Virginia C. Drosos        

Virginia C. Drosos

Director

/s/    Dale Hilpert        

Dale Hilpert

Director

/s/    Helen McCluskey        

Helen McCluskey

Director

/s/    Marianne Miller Parrs        

Marianne Miller Parrs

Director    
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Signature Title

/s/    Thomas G. Plaskett        

Thomas G. Plaskett

Director

/s/    Robert J. Stack        

Robert J. Stack

Director

/s/    Jonathan Sokoloff        

Jonathan Sokoloff

Director

/s/    Eugenia M. Ulasewicz        

Eugenia M. Ulasewicz

Director

/s/    Russell Walls        

Russell Walls

Director

/s/    Michele L. Santana        

Michele L. Santana

Authorized U.S. Representative
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

  1.1+ Form of Underwriting Agreement.

  3.1 Memorandum of Association of Signet Limited and Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name to
Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A filed September 11, 2008 (�Form 8-A�)).

  3.2 Amended and Restated Bye-laws of Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed September 10, 2014).

  4.1 Form of common share certificate of Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Form 8-A).

  4.2 Certificate of Designation of Series A Convertible Preference Shares (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 3, 2016).

  4.3 Investment Agreement dated as of August 24, 2016, by and among Signet Jewelers Limited, Green
Equity Investors VI, L.P. and Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 25, 2016).

  4.4 Shareholders� Agreement dated as of October 5, 2016, by and among Signet Jewelers Limited, Green
Equity Investors VI, L.P., Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P., LGP Associates VI-A LLC and LGP
Associates VI-B LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
October 6, 2016).

  4.5 Registration Rights Agreement, made and entered into as of October 5, 2016, by and among Signet
Jewelers Limited, Green Equity Investors VI, L.P., Green Equity Investors Side VI, L.P., LGP Associates
VI-A LLC and LGP Associates VI-B LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 6, 2016).

  5.1* Opinion of Conyers Dill & Pearman Limited.

12.1* Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preference Dividends.

23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP.

23.2* Consent of Conyers Dill & Pearman Limited (included in Exhibit 5.1).

24.1* Powers of Attorney (included on signature pages).

+ To be filed by amendment or by a report filed under the Exchange Act and incorporated herein by reference.
* Indicates documents filed herewith.
rgin-top:0px;margin-bottom:0px"> 

(iii) Intermediate petrochemical products
The Group�s net sales of intermediate petrochemical products amounted to RMB17,993.5 million in 2012, representing a decrease of 5.41% as
compared to RMB19,023.2 million in 2011, with the weighted average sales price of intermediate petrochemical products decreased by 3.81%
as compared to the previous year while sales volume decreased by 1.67%. Among the intermediate petrochemical products, weighted average
sales prices of paraxylene, butadiene and ethylene glycol decreased by 5.25%, 12.22% and 13.90%, respectively, while weighted average sales
price of benzene increased by 10.32%. The sales of paraxylene, butadiene, ethylene glycol and benzene accounted for 32.19%, 11.83%, 10.46%
and 16.16% of the total sales of intermediate petrochemical products, respectively.
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Net sales of intermediate petrochemical accounted for 20.6% of the Group�s total net sales in 2012, representing a decrease of 0.7 percentage
points as compared to the previous year.

(iv) Petroleum products
The Group�s net sales of petroleum products amounted to RMB38,301.4 million in 2012, representing an increase of 2.55% as compared to
RMB37,350.2 million in the previous year, with the weighted average sales price increased by 3.24%, while sales volume decreased by 0.68%.

Net sales of petroleum products accounted for 43.9% of the Group�s total net sales in 2012, representing an increase of 2.2 percentage points as
compared to the previous year.

(v) Trading of petrochemical products
The Group�s net sales of the trading of petroleum products amounted to RMB12,020.7 million in 2012, representing an increase of 3.48% as
compared to RMB11,617.0 million in the previous year. Such increase in the net sales was mainly attributable to a slight increase in the Group�s
trading volume of petrochemical products as compared to the previous year.
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Net sales of trading of petrochemical products accounted for 13.8% of the Group�s total net sales in 2012, representing an increase of 0.8
percentage points as compared to the previous year.

(vi) Others
The Group�s net sales of others amounted to RMB882.1 million in 2012, representing a decrease of 7.20% as compared to RMB950.5 million in
the previous year. Such decrease in the net sales was mainly attributable to a decrease in the Group�s business of crude oil processed on a
sub-contract basis.

Net sales of others accounted for 1.0% of the Group�s total net sales in 2012, basically at par with the previous year.

2) Operating expenses
The Group�s operating expenses comprise cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses, other operating expenses and other operating
income.

Operating expenses of the Group were RMB88,989.7 million in 2012, representing a slight increase as compared with RMB88,449.9 million in
2011. The operating expenses of petroleum products and trading of petrochemical products were RMB39,294.4 million and RMB11,974.3
million, representing increases of 3.94% and 3.21%, respectively. The operating expenses of synthetic fibres, resins and plastics, intermediate
petrochemicals, and others amounted to RMB3,718.6 million, RMB15,997.7 million, RMB17,160.8 million, and RMB843.9 million,
representing a decrease of 3.39%, 2.49%, 3.99% and 7.69% as compared to the previous year, respectively.

The Group�s operating expenses of petroleum products in 2012 increased by 3.94% as compared to the previous year, primarily due to an
increase of 3.56% in average unit cost of crude oil processed.

The Group�s operating expenses of trading of petrochemical products in 2012 increased by 3.21% as compared to the previous year, primarily
due to a slight increase in the Group�s trading volume of petrochemical products as compared to the previous year.

The Group�s operating expenses of synthetic fibres, resins and plastics, intermediate petrochemicals and others in 2012 declined primarily due to
decreases in both sales volume and prices of certain petrochemical raw materials.
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� Cost of sales
The Group�s cost of sales amounted to RMB88,617.8 million in 2012, basically at par with RMB87,881.2 million in 2011. Cost of sales
accounted for 101.61% of the net sales for 2012.

� Selling and administrative expenses
The Group�s selling and administrative expenses amounted to RMB649.9 million in 2012, representing a decrease of 3.83% as compared to
RMB675.8 million in the previous year, mainly due to a decrease in sales agency fees in routine (continuing) connected transactions in line with
the decrease in sales volume.

� Other operating income
The Group�s other operating income amounted to RMB333.8 million in 2012, representing an increase of 103.16% compared to RMB164.3
million in the previous year, mainly due to an increase of RMB144.1 million of government grants recognised in profit or loss after fulfilling the
conditions in 2012 as compared to the previous year.

� Other operating expenses
The Group�s other operating expenses was RMB55.8 million in 2012, basically at par with RMB57.2 million in 2011.

3) (Loss)/profit from operations
The Group�s loss from operations amounted to RMB1,772.4 million in 2012, representing a decrease in profit of RMB2,832.2 million as
compared to the profit from operations of RMB1,059.8 million in the previous year.

4) Net finance (costs)/income
The Group�s net finance costs were RMB283.3 million in 2012, while there was a net finance income of RMB83.5 million in 2011. The change
was mainly due to a decrease of RMB213.4 million in net foreign exchange gain during the Reporting Period as compared to the previous year
resulting from the stability in the US Dollar to Renminbi exchange rate during the Reporting Period. Furthermore, a substantial amount of new
borrowings was made by the Group, resulting in an increase of RMB140.6 million in interest expense.
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  5) (Loss)/profit before taxation
The Group�s loss before taxation was RMB2,016.5 million in 2012, representing a decrease in profit of RMB3,313.2 million as compared to the
profit before taxation of RMB1,296.7 million in the previous year.

  6) Income tax
The Group�s income tax credit was RMB511.4 million in 2012, while the Group�s income tax expense was RMB310.2 million in the previous
year. The change was primarily attributable to the deferred tax assets recognised in respect of the unused tax loss generated by the Company in
2012.

In accordance with the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (as amended) which took effect from 1 January 2008, the income tax rate of the Group
in 2012 was 25% (2011: 25%).

  7) (Loss)/profit for the year
The Group�s loss for the year was RMB1,505.1 million in 2012, representing a decrease in profit of RMB2,491.6 million as compared to the
profit for the year of RMB986.5 million in the previous year.

5.3.2B Liquidity and Capital Sources
The Group�s primary sources of capital are operating cash flows and loans from unaffiliated banks. The Group�s primary uses of capital are costs
of goods sold, other operating expenses and capital expenditure.

  1) Capital Sources

(i) Net cash flow generated from operating activities
The Group�s net cash outflows from operating activities amounted to RMB2,066.4 million in 2012, representing a decrease in cash inflows of
RMB4,286.4 million as compared to net cash inflows of RMB2,220.0 million in the previous year. In particular, 1) due to the decline in the
Group�s profit from operations during the Reporting Period, net cash outflows from loss before taxation (net of depreciation and impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment) amounted to RMB333.4 million in 2012, representing a decrease of RMB3,264.4 million of cash
inflows compared to net cash inflows of RMB2,931.0 million in the previous year; 2) the Group�s increased inventory balance led to a decrease
in operating cash flow of RMB3,366.0 million in 2012 (as compared to a decrease in operating cash flow of RMB230.1 million in the previous
year due to increased inventory balance at the end of the previous year); and 3) decrease in the balances of debtors, bills receivable and
prepayments led to an increase in operating cash flow of RMB992.2 million in 2012 (as compared to a decrease in operating cash flow of
RMB1,015.4 million in 2011 as a result of an increase in such year-end balances of the previous year).
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(ii) Borrowings
The total borrowings of the Group at the end of 2012 amounted to RMB12,255.2 million, representing an increase of RMB6,583.1 million as
compared to the end of the previous year, of which short-term borrowings increased by RMB5,511.8 million, and long-term borrowings
increased by RMB1,071.3 million.

The Group managed to maintain its liability-to-asset ratio at a safe level by enhancing controls over both liabilities (including borrowings) and
financing risks. The Group generally does not experience any seasonality in borrowings. However, due to the nature of the capital expenditure
plan, long-term bank loans can be arranged in advance of expenditure while short-term borrowings are used to meet operational needs. The
terms of the Group�s existing borrowings do not restrict its ability to pay dividends on its shares.

  2) Liability-to-asset ratio
As at 31 December 2012, the Group�s liability-to-asset ratio was 55.29% (2011: 40.77%). The ratio is calculated using this formula: total
liabilities/ total assets.

5.3.2C Research and Development, Patents and Licenses
The Group comprises a number of technology development units, including the Petrochemical Research Institute, the Plastics Research Institute,
the Polyester Fibre Research Institute, the Acrylic Fibre Research Institute and the Environmental Protection Research Institute. These units are
charged with various research and development tasks with respect to new technology, new products, new production processes and equipment
and environmental protection. The Group�s research and development expenditures for the years ended 2010, 2011 and 2012 were RMB58.2
million, RMB79.6 million and RMB72.2 million, respectively, all representing approximately 0.1% of the total turnover for those years.
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The Group was not, in any material aspect, dependent on any patents, licenses, industrial, commercial or financial contracts, or new production
processes.

5.3.2D Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Please refer to note 27 to the financial statements prepared under IFRS in this annual report for details of the Group�s capital commitments. The
Group did not provide any guarantee to outside parties during the Reporting Period.

5.3.2E Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth the Group�s obligations to repay loan principal in future as at 31 December 2012:

As at 31 December 2012
payment due by period

Total

(RMB�000)

Within

1 year

(RMB�000)

After 1 year

but within

2 years

(RMB�000)

After 2 years

but within

5 years

(RMB�000)
Contractual obligations
Short term borrowings 11,023,877 11,023,877 �  �  
Long term borrowings 1,231,340 �  370,560 860,780

Total contractual obligations 12,255,217 11,023,877 370,560 860,780
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5.3.2F Analysis of Performance and Results of the Companies in Which the Company Has Controlling Interests or Investment
Interests during the Reporting Period

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had more than 50% equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries:

Company
Place of
registration

Principal
activities

Place for
principal
activities

Type of
legal
person

Percentage of
equity held

by the Company
(%)

Percentage
of equity
held by

subsidiaries
(%)

Registered capital
(�000)

Profit/
(loss) for the
year 2012
(RMB�000)

Shanghai Petrochemical
Investment Development
Company Limited

China Investment
management

China Limited
company

100 �  RMB1,000,000 38,659

China Jinshan Associated
Trading Corporation

China Import
and
export of
petrochemical
products
and
equipment

China Limited
company

67.33 �  RMB25,000 27,833

Shanghai Jinchang
Engineering Plastics
Company Limited

China Production
of
polypropylene
compound
products

China Limited
company

�  74.25 US$9,153.8 246

Shanghai Golden Phillips
Petrochemical Company
Limited

China Production
of
polypropylene
products

China Limited
company

�  60 US$50,000 35,287

Zhejiang Jin Yong Acrylic
Fibre Company Limited

China Production
of acrylic
fibre
products

China Limited
company

75 �  RMB250,000 (30,048)

Shanghai Golden Conti
Petrochemical Company
Limited

China Production
of
petrochemical
products

China Limited
company

�  100 RMB545,776 2,717

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities.
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The Group�s equity interests in its associates comprised an equity interest of 38.26%, amounted to RMB947.6 million, in Shanghai Chemical
Industry Park Development Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC; and an equity interest of 20%, amounted to RMB1,454.1 million, in
Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC. The principal business of Shanghai Chemical Industry
Park Development Co., Ltd. includes planning, developing and operating the Chemical Industry Park in Shanghai, while the principal business
of Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company Limited is the production and distribution of petrochemicals.

In 2012, none of the subsidiaries controlled by the Group had more than 10% effect on the net profit of the Group.

5.3.2G Major Suppliers and Customers
The Group�s top five suppliers in 2012 were China International United Petroleum & Chemical Co., Ltd., Sinochem Oil Co., Ltd., Sinopec
Chemical Commercial Holding Company Limited, Heilongjiang United Oil & Chemicals Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company
Limited. Total procurement costs from these suppliers, which amounted to RMB57,197.6 million, accounted for 69.31% of the total
procurement costs of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012. The procurement costs from the largest supplier amounted to RMB
36, 998.6 million , representing 44.84% of the total costs of purchases by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Group�s top five customers in 2012 were Sinopec Huadong Sales Company Limited, Sinopec Chemical Commercial Holding Company
Limited, China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company Limited and Oriental Petrochemical (Shanghai)
Corporation. The total sales to these customers amounted to RMB51,225.1 million, representing 55.04% of the Group�s total turnover during the
year ended 31 December 2012. The sales to the largest customer amounted to RMB37,635.4 million, representing 40.44% of the Group�s total
turnover during the year ended 31 December 2012.

To the knowledge of the Board, in relation to the above suppliers and customers, none of the Directors (or their associates) or shareholders of the
Company had any interest in Sinochem Oil Co., Ltd., Heilongjiang United Oil & Chemicals Co., Ltd. and Oriental Petrochemical (Shanghai)
Corporation. China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation is the controlling shareholder of the Company. China International United Petroleum &
Chemical Co. Ltd., Sinopec Huadong Sales Company Limited and Sinopec Chemical Commercial Holding Company Limited are subsidiaries of
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, the controlling shareholder of the Company. The Company owns an equity interest of 20% in
Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company Limited.
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5.4 Discussion and Analysis of the Company�s Operation (prepared under CAS)

5.4.1 Analysis of the Company�s Major Business

5.4.1A Analysis of Changes in the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Unit: RMB�000

For the years  ended
31 December

Item 2012 2011 Change (%)
Operating income 93,072,254 95,601,248 �2.65
Operating costs 86,041,072 85,042,194 1.17
Business taxes and surcharges 5,791,064 6,009,203 �3.63
Selling and distribution expenses 649,906 675,771 �3.83
General and administrative expenses 2,388,555 2,556,011 �6.55
Financial expenses (�-� for financial income) 283,257 �83,542 �439.06
Net cash inflow from operating activities (�-� for net outflow) �1,611,521 2,481,431 �164.94
Net cash outflow from investing activities �4,062,131 �2,810,179 44.55
Net cash inflow from financing activities 5,743,270 320,370 1,692.70
Research and development expenditure 72,174 79,573 �9.30
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Analysis of Major Changes in the Consolidated Income Statement

Unit: RMB�000

For the years ended

31 December
Increase/
decrease
amount

Change
(%)

Major reason

for changeItem 2012 2011
Financial expenses (�-� for financial income) 283,257 �83,542 366,799 �439.06 Net foreign exchange gain decreased and

increased loans and borrowings resulted
in higher interest expense in 2012.

Non-operating income 279,838 91,894 187,944 204.52 Refund of local taxes increased in 2012.
Operating profit (�-� for loss) �2,256,297 1,260,377 �3,516,674 �279.02 Gross profit decreased in 2012.
Profit before income tax (�-� for loss) �2,032,974 1,292,291 �3,325,265 �257.32
Income tax �507,763 317,461 �825,224 �259.95
Net profit for the year (�-� for net loss) �1,525,211 974,830 �2,500,041 �256.46
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company (�-� for net loss)

�1,548,466 944,414 �2,492,880 �263.96

Analysis of Major Changes in the Cash Flow Statement

Unit: RMB�000

For the years ended

31 December
Increase/
decrease
amount

Change
(%)

Major reason

for changeItem 2012 2011
Net cash inflow from operating activities (�-�
for net outflow)

�1,611,521 2,481,431 �4,092,952 �164.94 Gross profit decreased in 2012, with a
marked decline in operating results.

Net cash outflow from investing activities �4,062,131 �2,810,179 �1,251,952 44.55 Capital expenditure increased in 2012
mainly in the Refinery Revamping and
Expansion Project.

Net cash inflow from financing activities 5,743,270 320,370 5,422,900 1,692.70 Loans and borrowings increased to
replenish the working capital in 2012.
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5.4.1B Operating Income

1) Analysis of Changes in Operating Income
Aside from the weighted average price (excluding tax) of petroleum products, which increased by 3.24% over the previous year, the weighted
average prices (excluding tax) of the Group�s synthetic fibres, resins and plastics, and intermediate petrochemical products fell by 20.92%, 9.98%
and 3.81%, respectively, resulting in a lower operating income in 2012 compared to the previous year.

2) Major Customers
Please refer to 5.3.2G for details of major customers of the Group.

5.4.1C Operating Costs

1) Analysis of Operating Costs
Operating costs of the Group were RMB86,041.1 million in 2012 , representing a slight increase of 1.17% as compared with RMB85,042.2
million in 2011, which was mainly due to an increase in the average unit cost of crude oil processed.

The following table sets forth the details of the operating costs during the Reporting Period:

For the years ended 31 December
2012 2011

RMB
Million

% of
Total

RMB
Million

% of

Total
Change
(%)

Cost of raw materials
Crude oil 55,538.0 64.55 53,521.9 62.94 3.77
Ancillary materials 12,457.3 14.48 14,846.8 17.46 �16.09
Depreciation and amortisation 1,631.6 1.90 1,567.6 1.84 4.08
Staff costs 1,401.2 1.63 1,336.0 1.57 4.88
Costs of merchandise 11,886.3 13.81 11,480.9 13.50 3.53
Others 3,126.7 3.63 2,289.0 2.69 36.60

Total 86,041.1 100.00 85,042.2 100.00 1.17
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2)   Major Suppliers

Please refer to 5.3.2G for details of major suppliers of the Group.

5.4.1D Expenses
Please refer to Analysis of Major Changes in the Consolated Income Statement and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of 5.4.1A in this
section during the Reporting Period for the analysis of expenses changes.

5.4.1E Research and Development Expenditure
Unit: RMB�000

Expensed R&D expenditure during the Reporting Period 72,174
Capitalised R&D expenditure during the Reporting Period �  

Total 72,174

% of Net assets 0.44

% of Operating income 0.08

Please refer to 5.3.2C for details of Research and Development, Patents and Licenses of the Group.

5.4.1F Cash Flow
Please refer to 5.4.1A Analysis of Major Changes in the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement in this
section for details of the changes in cash flow statement items.
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5.4.2 Analysis of Business Operations by Segment, Product and Geographical Location

5.4.2A Principal operations by segment or product

By segment or product

Operating
income

(RMB�000)

Operating
costs

(RMB�000)

Gross profit/
(loss) margin

(%)

Increase/
decrease of
operating
income as
compared
to the

previous
year
(%)

Increase/
decrease

of
operating
costs as
compared
to the

previous
year
(%)

Increase/
decrease

of
gross
profit

margin as
compared
to the

previous
year

(percentage
point)

Synthetic fibres 3,344,190 3,558,002 �6.39 �20.34 �1.26 �20.56
Resins and plastics 14,828,298 15,416,471 �3.97 �10.62 �3.27 �7.90
Intermediate petrochemicals 18,161,380 16,465,123 9.34 �5.62 �5.27 �0.33
Petroleum products 43,754,793 37,934,333 13.30 (note) 2.00 6.12 �3.37
Trading of petrochemical products 12,025,361 11,886,346 1.16 3.48 3.16 0.31
Others 958,232 780,797 18.52 �9.04 �8.41 �0.55

Note:The gross profit margin is calculated according to the price of petroleum products which includes consumption tax. The gross profit
margin of petroleum products after deducting consumption tax amounted to 0.84%.

5.4.2B Principal operations by geographical location
Unit: RMB�000

Geographical location
Operating
income

Increase/decrease of
operating income
compared to the
previous year (%)

Eastern China 87,656,088 �1.77
Other regions in the PRC 4,354,211 �27.15
Exports 1,061,955 176.18
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5.4.3 Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Unit: RMB�000

As at 31 December 2012 As at 31 December 2011

Item Amount

% of

Total
Assets Amount

% of

Total
Assets

Change
(%)

Major reason for

change over 30%
Cash at bank and on hand 160,962 0.44 91,346 0.29 76.21 A surplus arose after net cash inflow

from financing activities bridged
operating and investing net cash
outflow due to operating loss and
capital expenditure in 2012.

Bills receivable 2,065,483 5.61 3,131,579 10.07 �34.04 Sales settled with bills receivable
decreased.

Accounts receivable 1,082,742 2.94 609,906 1.96 77.53 Sales volume of petroleum products
increased at the end of 2012, and
receivables from related parties
increased.

Inventories 8,938,077 24.28 5,582,425 17.94 60.11 Purchases of crude oil increased at the
end of 2012

Long-term equity investments 3,057,153 8.31 3,101,305 9.97 �1.42 �
Investment properties 439,137 1.19 452,555 1.45 �2.96 �
Fixed assets 17,622,001 47.88 12,659,332 40.69 39.20 Construction in progress was
Construction in progress 612,388 1.66 3,882,992 12.48 �84.23 transferred to fixed assets after the

completion and launch of the Refinery
Revamping and Expansion Project in
2012.

Short-term loans 11,023,877 29.95 5,512,074 17.72 100.00 Short-term loans were borrowed to
replenish the working capital in 2012.

Accounts payable 5,523,248 15.01 4,650,007 14.95 18.78 �
Long-term loans 1,231,340 3.35 160,050 0.51 669.35 Long-term loans were borrowed for

the construction of the Refinery
Revamping and Expansion Project in
2012.
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5.5 Others

(1) Group�s employees

The number of employees of the Company 14,894
The number of employees of the subsidiaries 113
Total number of employees of the Group 15,007
The number of retired workers who required the Group to bear the costs of retirement 14,910
Professionals structure and level of education of the Company�s employees

Category of Professionals
Number of
employees

Production personnel 8,689
Sales staff 105
Technical staff 2,271
Financial officers 144
Administrative staff 1617
Others 2,068

Level of education (college or above) 41.33% 

Educational Attainment
Number of
employees

Post-graduate and above 178
Undergraduate 2,416
College graduate 3,561
High school, college and the following 8,739

Total 14,894

(2) Purchase, Sale and Investment
Save and except as disclosed in this annual report, there was no material purchase or sale of the Group�s subsidiaries or associates or any other
material investments in 2012.

(3) Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2012, no fixed asset was pledged by the Group (31 December 2011: RMB nil).
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5.6 Status of Holding Foreign Currency Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
As at 31 December 2012, the Group held foreign-currency denominated bank deposits and loans and borrowings, equivalent to RMB928,000
and RMB7,839,879,000 respectively.

5.7 Company Outlook on Future Development (Business Prospects)

(1) Development trends and market competition in the industry
In 2013, the global economic situation will remain complex and highly variable. The global economy will continue to grow at a slow pace.
There will be a surge in various forms of protectionism, with potential inflationary pressures and asset bubbles. The global economy has
switched from a period of rapid growth before the crisis to a period of deep transformation and adjustment. As China is still in an important
period of strategic opportunity, it will continue to maintain its macro-economic policy to promote growth while ensuring stability by maintaining
its proactive fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy, as well as actively boosting domestic demand to drive steady economic growth. The
future of the global petrochemical industry is undergoing major changes as the large-scale development of shale gas in North America will
reduce the costs of energy and petrochemical; the development of the coal chemical industry will pose challenges to the traditional
petrochemical industry; and the petrochemical industry is facing more intense competition. The uncertainties in the international crude oil
market, uncertain outlook on global economic growth, changes in the pattern of oil supply and turmoil in West Asia and North Africa will
collectively impact international crude oil prices. Various factors such as the European debt crisis, the slow U.S. economic recovery which may
continue to depress energy demand, worldwide quantitative easing policies and Middle East geopolitics will influence crude oil prices. The
overall supply-demand equilibrium of the international crude oil market is expected to remain stable, with crude oil prices continuing to
fluctuate at high levels. The overall Chinese domestic consumer market will maintain a stable growth; market demand for energy and major bulk
chemical products will rise; and investment in the petrochemical industry will continue to grow at a fast pace. The operations of the petroleum
and chemical industries are expected to maintain stable overall, and will pick up growth momentum as part of a steady and positive development
trend.
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(2) Business plans for 2013
In 2013, the Group aims to develop itself into an advanced refineries and petrochemicals enterprise. It will focus on improving the quality and
efficiency of its development, adjusting its structure, deepening its reform and strengthening its management. The Group will also proactively
work on various aspects of its business, such as its underlying competitiveness, production and operation competence, management capabilities,
R&D strength, as well as improve its workforce and development environment. It will make the most of its advantages deriving from the
operation of the Refinery Revamping and Expansion Project and the Technological Advancement programme items, and will strive to improve
its economic returns.

To achieve its business objectives in 2013, the Group will carry out tasks in the following areas:

� Strengthening safety management and environmental protection as well as boosting safe, green and low-carbon development
The Group will implement a green and low-carbon development strategy to further improve safety management and environmental protection.
This includes adopting safety management initiatives and launching more safety campaigns to strengthen grid management at construction sites,
HSE supervision and management during direct operation process, as well as emergency response management and HSE supervision over
contractors. The Group will step up environmental control by establishing a long-term mechanism for environmental control; deepening and
expanding deodorizing programme in the plant site; continuing to cut down the total amount of solid waste; strengthening emergency response
management in the protection of water sources, prevention and control of air pollution and improvement in air quality; and measuring all carbon
emissions.

� Enhancing plant operation competence so as to ensure a safe, stable, long-cycle, full capacity and excellent operation of the plants.
The Group will introduce advanced managerial concepts to improve plant operation management. It will strengthen plant operation management
and run well the newly built plants of Phase 6 Project, strengthen the organisation and coordination of major production operations, and continue
to roll out special campaigns of safe, stable, long-cycle, full capacity and excellent operation among the production units. It will implement the
consolidated dispatching over production, electrical power and thermal power. The Group will promote energy conservation and feedstock
consumption reduction, complete power balance tests on 20 integrated units, as well as use contract energy management to improve the
Company�s energy utilisation efficiency. It will improve its overall capability for equipment management, implement plans for the long-cycle
plant operation, and strengthen the management of scheduled turnaround so as to lead the long-cycle operation to a higher level.
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� Strenthening operational optimisation and tackle the potential of economic return.
The Group will keep a close eye on the market and improve business operations, striving to maximise the advantages it enjoys in integrated
refining and chemical operations, and improve its operation efficiency. It will optimise procurement of crude oil for better economic return,
improve its analytical capability of oil price trends, optimise and minimise the number of sources of crude oil so as to give a full play to the
potential of the existing plants. The Group will optimise its intermediate feedstock and its product mix, its selection of raw materials and
material balancing, as well as its mix of refined oil products, and maximise the output of products with profit margin contribution. It will also
optimise sales strategies and patterns of material supply, endeavour to improve the market share of Shanghai IV refined oil products, improve
the sales and marketing of new products, implement a low-inventory strategy and improve the construction of a logistics circle accessible within
two to three hours. By fully leveraging the operations of the Refinery Revamping and Expansion Project and the optimisation of the refinery and
chemical systems, the Group will implement various cost and expense reduction measures, tighten cost management among all staff and exercise
strict control over expenditure. It will establish an effective equipment maintenance strategy grounded in scientific theory to reduce expenditure
in unnecessary inspection and maintenance costs, strengthen fund management and optimise fund operation.

� Promoting technological advancement and IT application programmes to support future development.
The Group will continue to explore a technological innovation system in combination with universities and speed up its development of IT
application to increase its strengths in R&D. It will develop more new products and technology, accelerate technological breakthrough in new
carbon fiber products, launch a pilot project with a capacity of 1,000 tons for norbornene/ ethylidene norbornene and hydrogenated petroleum
resins, promote the development and application of new environmental protection technologies, and step up the marketing of new products. The
Group will also improve the marketing of various new products such as specialised materials for binary random copolymer, fire-retardant
polyester series, NEP polyester chips, gel dyed acrylic and precursor liquid coloring acrylic, as well as increase their output in a steady manner.
It will continue to proceed with its IT application programme which includes APC systems for various plants such as those for online blending
of diesel, aromatics complex, CDU and EO/EG plant, process simulation systems for various plants, such as No. 3 diesel hydrogenation plant
and butadiene plant, a complete production and operation monitoring and analysis system will be built. With all above-mentioned IT systems
being built, the Group will take a further step in application of information systems.
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� Strengthening corporate management and improving scientific management competence.
The Group will work out detailed and practical measures for various tasks, develop a mechanism of benchmarking so as to regulate process
management and improve the level of professional management. The Group will give full play to its integrated management systems so as to
achieve higher standard of compliance. It will set up and work on improving a strategic goal-oriented performance appraisal system to maximise
the role of orientation and incentives in performance appraisal, and improve the correlation between organisational performance and individual
employee performance to enhance the effectiveness of performance appraisal.

� Strengthening team building and creating a stable and harmonious environment for development
The Group will carry out medium and long-term planning for human resources, constantly improve the setup of channels catering to the growth
of all types of competent staff, and enhance staff training and human resource optimisation, aiming at building a first-class workforce. It will
further refine and enrich the connotation of its corporate culture, actively cultivate corporate core values, take care for staff welfare and
livelihood and promote the healthy, stable and harmonious development of the Group.

(3) The risks to which the Company may be exposed in its future development

� The cyclical characteristics of the petroleum and petrochemical market as well as the volatility in the prices of crude oil and
petrochemical products may have an adverse impact on the Group�s operation.

A large part of the Group�s operating income is derived from the sales revenue of refined oil and petrochemical products. Historically, such
products have been cyclical in nature and relatively sensitive towards changes in the macro economy as well as in regional and global economic
conditions, productivity and output, prices and supply of raw materials, consumer demand and prices and supply of substitutes. These factors
have a major impact, from time to time, on the prices of the Group�s products available in the regional and global markets. Given the reduction of
tariffs and other import restrictions as well as China�s relaxed control over the distribution and pricing of products, many of the Group�s products
will be subject to the rising impact of the petrochemical cycle in regional and global markets. In addition, the prices of crude oil and
petrochemical products will remain volatile, with an uncertain outlook. Higher crude oil prices and lower petrochemical products prices are
likely to have an adverse impact on the Group�s business, operating results and financial condition.
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� The Group may be exposed to risks associated with the procurement of imported crude oil and may not be able to pass on
all increased costs due to rising crude oil prices.

At present, the Group consumes a significant amount of crude oil for the production of petrochemical products. More than 90% of the crude oil
required has to be imported. In recent years, crude oil prices have been fluctuating significantly due to a number of factors, and the Group cannot
rule out the possibility that a number of major unexpected events may cause a suspension in crude oil supply. Although the Group attempted to
mitigate the effect of increased costs from rising crude oil prices by passing them on to customers, this is subject to market conditions and the
government control over the pricing of refined oil products. Since there is a time-lag between the rise in crude oil prices and the rise in
petrochemical product prices, higher costs cannot be totally offset by raising sales prices. In addition, the State also imposes control over the
distribution of some petroleum products within China. For instance, some of the Group�s petroleum products are required to be sold to designated
customers (such as the subsidiaries of Sinopec Corp.). Hence, when crude oil prices are high, the higher costs cannot be totally offset by raising
sales prices of the Group�s petroleum products. This has created, and will continue to create, a significant adverse impact on the Group�s financial
condition, operating results or cash flow.

� Substantial capital expenditures and financing requirements are required for the Group�s development plans, presenting a number of
risks and uncertainties.

The petrochemical industry is a capital-intensive industry. The Group�s ability to maintain and raise income, net income and cash flows has a
bearing upon ongoing capital expenditures. The Group�s estimated capital expenditures amount to approximately RMB2,600.0 million in 2013,
which will be met by financing activities and by internal funding. The Group�s real capital expenditures may vary significantly due to the Group�s
ability to generate sufficient cash flow from operations, investments and other factors that are beyond the control of the Group. Besides, there is
no assurance of the completion of the Group�s capital projects, of the costs required for completion, and of the success of completed projects.

The Group�s ability to secure external financing in the future is subject to a number of uncertainties which include the Company�s operating
results, financial condition and cash flow in future; China�s economic conditions and the market conditions for the Group�s products; financing
costs and conditions of the financial market; and availability of government approval documents, other risks associated with the development of
infrastructure projects in China and so forth. The Group�s failure to secure sufficient financing required for its operations or development plans
may have an adverse impact on the Group�s business, operating results and financial condition.

45

Edgar Filing: SIGNET JEWELERS LTD - Form S-3ASR

Table of Contents 119



Table of Contents

� The Group�s business operations may be affected by existing or future environmental protection regulations.
The Group is governed by a number of environmental protection laws and regulations in China. Waste products (waste water, waste gas and
waste residue) are generated during the Group�s production operations. Currently the Group�s operations fully comply with all applicable Chinese
environmental protection laws and regulations. However, the Chinese Government has already enforced and may further enforce stricter
environmental standards, and the Group cannot assure that the State or local governments will not enact more regulations or enforce certain
regulations more strictly which may cause the Group to incur additional expenses on environmental protection measures.

� Changes in the monetary policy and fluctuations in the value of Renminbi may have an adverse impact on the Group�s business and
operating results.

The exchange rate of the Renminbi against the US Dollar and other foreign currencies may fluctuate and is subject to alterations due to changes
in the Chinese political and economic scenes. In July 2005, the PRC Government overhauled its policy of pegging the value of the Renminbi to
the US dollar by permitting the Renminbi to fluctuate within a certain band against a basket of certain foreign currencies. Since the adoption of
this new policy, the value of the Renminbi against the US dollar has fluctuated daily. In addition, the Chinese Government has been under
international pressure to further ease its exchange rate policy, and as a result may further change its currency policy. A small portion of our cash
and cash equivalents is denominated in foreign currencies, including the US dollar. Any increase in the value of Renminbi against other
currencies, including the US dollar, may decrease the Renminbi value of our cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in foreign
currencies. On the other hand, most of our revenues are denominated in Renminbi, but a major part of our procurement of crude oil, certain
equipment and certain debt repayments are denominated in foreign currencies. Any devaluation of Renminbi in the future will increase our costs
and jeopardize our profitability. Any devaluation of Renminbi may also have an adverse impact on the value of dividends payable in foreign
currencies by the Group for H shares and American Depository Shares.
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� Connected transactions may have an adverse impact on the Group�s business and economic efficiency.
The Group will, from time to time, continue to conduct transactions with Sinopec Corp., the Group�s controlling shareholder; Sinopec Group, the
controlling shareholder of Sinopec Corp.; as well as connected parties (subsidiaries or associates) thereof. These connected transactions include:
provision of raw materials purchases, the agency sale of petrochemical products, construction, installation and engineering design services,
petrochemical industry insurance services and financial services to the Group by these connected parties; and the Group�s sale of petroleum and
petrochemical products to Sinopec Corp. and its connected parties. The aforesaid connected transactions and services conducted by the Group
are carried out under normal commercial terms and terms of relevant agreements. However, if Sinopec Corp. and Sinopec Group refuse to
conduct such transactions or revise the agreements between the Group and itself in a manner unfavorable to the Group, the Group�s business and
business efficiency will be adversely impacted. Besides, Sinopec Corp. has an interest in certain sectors that are directly or indirectly competing
with or which may compete with the Group�s business. Since Sinopec Corp. is the controlling shareholder of the Group and its own interests may
conflict with those of the Group, it may act for its own benefit regardless of the Group�s interests.

� Risks associated with control by the majority shareholder.
Sinopec Corp., the controlling shareholder of the Company, owns 4,000,000,000 shares of the Company, which represents 55.56% of the total
number of shares of the Company and gives it an absolute controlling position. Sinopec Corp. may, by using its controlling position, exercise
influence over the Group�s production operation, funds allocations, appointment or removal of senior staff and so forth, thereby adversely
impacting the Group�s production operation as well as minority shareholders� interests.

� Risks associated with the failure to complete the share reform.
The Company initiated share reform proposals commissioned by the shareholders of non-tradable shares, first in October 2006 and subsequently
in December 2007. However, the two share reform proposals failed to obtain the approval of shareholders of tradable A shares. According to the
relevant regulations, the Shanghai Stock Exchange started to adopt a special arrangement from 8 January 2007, of having a differentiated system
for listed companies that were unable to complete the share reform, under which the range of share price movements for such A shares were
unitarily adjusted up or down by 5% each day, with a trading information disclosure system equivalent to that of ST and *ST stocks applied to
such stocks. It does not rule out the possibility that the CSRC and the Shanghai Stock Exchange may set more limits for companies which have
not yet completed the share reform. Such regulations may have an adverse impact on the business environment, market image and market
financing activities of the Company.
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5.8 Projects not Funded by Proceeds from Share Issue
In 2012, the capital expenditure of the Group amounted to RMB3,811.0 million, representing an increase of 18.17% as compared to
RMB3,225.0 million in 2011. Major projects include the following:

Project

Total project

investment in RMB
million

Project progress

as at 31 December 2012
Refinery Revamping and Expansion Project 6,267 Completed and put into operation Completed the first phase

and launched for trial operationThe Carbon Fibre Project with a capacity of 1,500 tons/year 848

The Up-grading Project for the optimisation of the system and
reduction in energy and feedstock consumption of the No. 2
PTA Plant 186 Completed and put into operation

Secondary Desulfurization Facilities for Furnaces 5 and 6
under the thermoelectric division 129 Completed and put into operation

No. 2 and No. 3 Aromatic Hydrocarbon Energy-saving
Upgrade Project 954 Under construction

Upgrade Project for the Optimisation of Energy Savings on
SL-II Ethylene Cracking Furnace Project in New Ethylene
Area 115 Under construction
The Group�s capital expenditure for 2013 is estimated at approximately RMB2,600.0 million.
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5.9 Plan for Profit Appropriation or Capital Reserve by the Board

5.9.1 Disclosure of the Cash Dividend Policy and its Stipulation, Implementation or Amendment
Article 206 of the Articles of Association reads:

�Where there is any profit that may be distributed to shareholders, the Company shall take steps to implement a profit distribution scheme with
the principle of providing reasonable investment return to shareholders as well as ensuring the Company to meet its reasonable capital
requirements.

The profit distribution policies of the Company are as follows:

(a) The Company shall properly deal with the correlation between the short-term benefits and long-term development of the Company
and formulate a reasonable dividend distribution plan each year based on the prevailing operating environment and the capital
requirement plan for project investment and after thoroughly considering the benefits of shareholders.

(b) The profit distribution policies of the Company shall maintain consistency and stability.

(c) The accumulated profits distributed in cash by the Company over the past three years shall represent no less than 30% of the realized
average annual distributable profits over the past three years.

(d) If the Board of the Company does not make any cash profit distribution proposal, the Company shall disclose the reason(s) in its
periodic reports.�

The 2011 profit appropriation plan was considered and approved at the 2011 Annual General Meeting held on 27th June 2012 and thereafter
implemented.

5.9.2 Plan for Profit Appropriation or Capital Reserves Capitalisation for the Reporting Period
In 2012, the net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB1,548,466,000 under CAS (net loss of
RMB1,528,397,000 under IFRS). The Board proposed that no dividend will be distributed and no capital reserve shall be converted into share
capital.
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5.9.3 Status of the Company�s Payment of Dividends or Capital Reserve Capitalisation over the Past Three Years (Including the
Reporting Period)

Unit: RMB�000

Year of paying dividends

Amount
of

bonus
shares
allocated
every
10

shares
(share)

Amount of
dividends
paid every

10
shares
(RMB)

(including tax)

Amount
of

transferred
shares every
10 shares
(share)

Amount of
cash

dividends
(including tax)

Net profit
attributable

to
equity

shareholders
of
the

Company
prepared
under

CAS for the
Year

(�-� for net loss)

Percentage
of net
profit

attributable
to equity

shareholders
of the

Company
prepared
under
CAS
for the
Year
(%)

2012 �  �  �  �  �1,548,466 �  
2011 �  0.50 �  360,000 944,414 38.12
2010 �  1.00 �  720,000 2,703,734 26.63

5.10 The Company�s Disclosure on the fulfillment of its Corporate Social Responsibility
Please refer to Appendix 4 �The Report on the Fulfillment of Corporate Social Responsibility 2012� of this annual report for details of the
fulfillment of social responsibility and environmental protection of the Company.
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6. MAJOR EVENTS AND OTHERS

6.1 Connected transactions in relation to daily operation
Major connected transactions involving purchases and sales of goods and services

Unit: RMB�000

Type of connected transactions Connected parties
Annual cap
for 2012

Transaction
amount
during the
Reporting
Period

Percentage
of the total
amount of
the same
type of

transaction
(%)

Mutual Product Supply and Sales Services Framework Agreement

Purchases of raw materials Sinopec Corp. and its associates 57,700,000 52,230,820 63.30
Sales of petroleum products Sinopec Corp. and its associates 52,000,000 37,618,198 40.42
Sales of petrochemical products Sinopec Corp. and its associates 17,400,000 13,722,908 14.74
Property leasing Sinopec Corp. and its associates 31,000 23,976 51.66
Agency sales of petrochemical products Sinopec Corp. and its associates 310,000 160,903 100.00

Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement

Construction, installation and engineering design
services Sinopec Group and its associates 640,000 436,082 38.88
Petrochemical industry insurance services Sinopec Group and its associates 141,000 115,918 65.92
Financial services Sinopec Group and its associates 229,000 29,716 6.37

6.2 Implementation of Code of Corporate Governance Practices
During the reporting period, the Company applied and complied with all principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Practices Code (during 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (the �Code�) (during 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the �Hong Kong Listing
Rules�), except for cetain deviations from Code Provision A.6.7 under the Code (independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings) listed below.
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Mr. Lei Dianwu, a Non-executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Jin Mingda, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, were
absent from the 2011 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2012 due to business reasons.

6.3 Model Code for Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted and applied the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the �Model Code for Securities
Transactions�) set out under Appendix 10 to Hong Kong Listing Rules to regulate securities transactions of the Directors and Supervisors. After
making specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors and having obtained written confirmations from each Director and Supervisor,
the Company has not identified any Director or Supervisor who did not fully comply with the Model Code for Securities Transactions during the
Reporting Period.

6.4 Purchase, sale and redemption of shares
During 2012, no purchase, sale or redemption was made by the Group.

6.5 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed with management the accounting principles and standards adopted by the Company,
discussed matters regarding auditing, internal control and financial reporting, and reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.1 Financial statement prepared under CAS

  ConsolidatedBalance Sheet

As at 31 December
2012 RMB�000 2011 RMB�000

Assets
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand 160,962 91,346
Bills receivable 2,065,483 3,131,579
Accounts receivable 1,082,742 609,906
Prepayments 90,261 43,160
Other receivables 40,765 46,994
Inventories 8,938,077 5,582,425
Other current assets 513,134 160,404

Total current assets 12,891,424 9,665,814
--------------------------- --------------------------

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments 3,057,153 3,101,305
Investment properties 439,137 452,555
Fixed assets 17,622,001 12,659,332
Construction in progress 612,388 3,882,992
Intangible assets 497,575 519,198
Long-term deferred expenses 633,548 306,052
Deferred tax assets 1,052,573 522,837

Total non-current assets 23,914,375 21,444,271
--------------------------- --------------------------

Total assets 36,805,799 31,110,085
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December
2012 RMB�000 2011 RMB�000

Liabilities and shareholders� equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans 11,023,877 5,512,074
Bills payable �  15,688
Accounts payable 5,523,248 4,650,007
Advances from customers 758,796 706,835
Employee benefits payable 48,008 46,140
Taxes payable 671,231 507,938
Interest payable 20,987 9,442
Dividends payable 21,548 22,599
Other payables 859,562 801,109

Total current liabilities 18,927,257 12,271,832
----------------- -----------------

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans 1,231,340 160,050
Other non-current liabilities 190,000 295,619

Total non-current liabilities 1,421,340 455,669
------------------ ------------------

Total liabilities 20,348,597 12,727,501
------------------ ------------------

Shareholders� equity:
Share capital 7,200,000 7,200,000
Capital reserve 2,914,763 2,914,763
Specific reserve 8,179 21,777
Surplus reserve 5,151,770 5,151,770
Retained earnings 915,707 2,824,173

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 16,190,419 18,112,483
Minority interests 266,783 270,101

Total equity 16,457,202 18,382,584
------------------ ------------------

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity 36,805,799 31,110,085

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27 March 2013.
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Operating income 93,072,254 95,601,248
Less: Operating costs 86,041,072 85,042,194
Business taxes and surcharges 5,791,064 6,009,203
Selling and distribution expenses 649,906 675,771
General and administrative expenses 2,388,555 2,556,011
Financial expenses (�-� for financial income) 283,257 �83,542
Impairment losses 203,927 284,574
Add: Investment income 29,230 143,340
Including: Income from investment in associates and jointly controlled enterprises 22,784 142,655

Operating profit (�-� for loss) �2,256,297 1,260,377
Add: Non-operating income 279,838 91,894
Less: Non-operating expenses 56,515 59,980
Including: Losses from disposal of non-current assets 24,670 21,125

Profit before income tax (�-� for loss) �2,032,974 1,292,291
Less: Income tax expense �507,763 317,461

Net profit for the year (�-� for net loss) �1,525,211 974,830

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company �1,548,466 944,414
Minority interests 23,255 30,416
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (�-� for loss) RMB -0.215 RMB 0.131

Other comprehensive income for the year �  �  

Total comprehensive income for the year (�-� for loss) �1,525,211 974,830

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company �1,548,466 944,414
Minority interests 23,255 30,416
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27 March 2013.
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7.2 Financial statements prepared under IFRS
Consolidated Income Statement

(Prepared under IFRS)

For the year ended
31 December

2012 2011
Note RMB�000 RMB�000

Turnover 10 93,008,338 95,518,856
Sales taxes and surcharges (5,791,064) (6,009,203)

Net sales 87,217,274 89,509,653
Cost of sales (88,617,789) (87,881,160)

Gross (loss)/profit (1,400,515) 1,628,493
Selling and administrative expenses (649,906) (675,771)
Other operating income 333,754 164,286
Other operating expenses (55,779) (57,184)

(Loss)/profit from operations (1,772,446) 1,059,824
------------------ ------------------

Finance income 86,545 299,036
Finance expenses (369,802) (215,494)

Net finance (costs)/income

2

(283,257)

-----------------

83,542

-----------------
Investment income 6,446 685

------------------ ------------------
Share of profit of associates and jointly controlled entities 32,784 152,655

------------------ ------------------

(Loss)/profit before taxation 3 (2,016,473) 1,296,706
Income tax 4 511,331 (310,184)

(Loss)/profit for the year (1,505,142) 986,522

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (1,528,397) 956,106
Non-controlling interests 23,255 30,416

(Loss)/profit for the year (1,505,142) 986,522

(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic 5 RMB (0.212) RMB 0.133

Diluted RMB (0.212) RMB 0.133
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Prepared under IFRS)

For the year ended
31 December

2012 2011
RMB�000 RMB�000

(Loss)/profit for the year (1,505,142) 986,522
Other comprehensive income for the year �  �  

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,505,142) 986,522

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (1,528,397) 956,106
Non-controlling interests 23,255 30,416

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,505,142) 986,522
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Prepared under IFRS)

31 December
2012

31 December
2011

Note RMB�000 RMB�000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17,468,748 12,501,980
Investment property 439,137 452,555
Construction in progress 612,388 3,852,692
Interest in associates and jointly controlled entities 2,867,153 2,901,305
Lease prepayments and other assets 1,131,123 825,250
Deferred tax assets 1,052,573 519,269

Total non-current assets 23,571,122 21,053,051
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Current assets
Inventories 8,938,077 5,582,425
Trade debtors 7 93,484 121,936
Bills receivable 7 2,046,657 2,988,010
Other debtors and prepayments 7 599,402 242,811
Amounts due from related parties 7 1,052,842 639,286
Cash and cash equivalents 160,962 91,346

Total current assets 12,891,424 9,665,814
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 8 11,023,877 5,512,074
Trade creditors 9 2,886,616 3,126,495
Bills payable 9 �  15,688
Other creditors 1,603,022 1,352,367
Amounts due to related parties 9 3,411,279 2,242,868
Income tax payable 2,463 22,340

Total current liabilities 18,927,257 12,271,832
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Net current liabilities (6,035,833) (2,606,018) 
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Total assets less current liabilities carried forward 17,535,289 18,447,033
----------------------------- ---------------------------
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(Prepared under IFRS)

31 December
2012

31 December
2011

Note RMB�000 RMB�000
Total assets less current liabilities brought forward 17,535,289 18,447,033

----------------------------- ---------------------------
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 8 1,231,340 160,050
Deferred income �  91,319

Total non-current liabilities 1,231,340 251,369
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Net assets 16,303,949 18,195,664

Shareholders� equity
Share capital 7,200,000 7,200,000
Reserves 8,837,166 10,725,563

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 16,037,166 17,925,563
Non-controlling interests 266,783 270,101

Total equity 16,303,949 18,195,664

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Changes in accounting policies
The International Accounting Standards Board has issued a few amendments to IFRS that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. None of the developments are relevant to the accounting policies applied in the financial statements for the years
presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

2. Net finance (costs)/income

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Interest income 86,545 99,345
Net foreign exchange gain �  199,691

Finance income 86,545 299,036
------------------- -------------------

Interest on loans and borrowings (466,409) (246,326) 
Less: borrowing costs capitalized as construction in progress # 110,306 30,832
Net foreign exchange loss (13,699) �  

Finance expenses (369,802) (215,494) 
------------------- ---------------------

Net finance (costs)/income (283,257) 83,542

# The borrowing costs during 2012 have been capitalized at a rate of 2.98%-6.21% per annum (2011: 2.75%-4.86%) for construction in
progress.
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3. (Loss)/profit before taxation
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Cost of inventories sold# 88,617,789 87,881,160
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment# 1,669,778 1,610,450
Depreciation of investment property# 13,250 13,250
Amortization of lease prepayments# 18,323 18,401
Repairs and maintenance expenses# 984,486 1,093,339
Research and development costs# 72,174 79,573
Employee�s pension costs#

� Municipal retirement scheme costs 264,160 235,013
� Supplementary retirement scheme costs 68,763 59,922
Staff costs# 1,740,160 1,699,158
Rental income from investment property (46,413) (41,758) 
Impairment losses
� Trade and other receivables 371 (2,384) 
� Property, plant and equipment �  10,552
Gain on disposal of investment by a subsidiary (6,446) �  
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets �  (685) 
Share of profit of associates and jointly controlled entities (32,784) (152,655) 
Auditors� remuneration � audit services 8,850 8,500

# Cost of inventories sold includes RMB 4,773,243,000 (2011: RMB 4,752,353,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation,
repairs and maintenance expenses, research and development costs and pension costs, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a loss of RMB 1,555,003,000 (2011: a profit of RMB
798,355,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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4. Income tax
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Current tax
� Provision for PRC income tax for the year 21,841 30,280
� Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 132 (436) 
Deferred taxation (533,304) 280,340

Total income tax (511,331) 310,184

A reconciliation of the expected income tax calculated at the applicable tax rate with the actual income tax is as follows:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (2,016,473) 1,296,706
--------------------------- --------------------------

Expected PRC income tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (504,118) 324,177
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,386 22,604
Tax effect of non-taxable income (3,968) (3,957) 
Under/(over) � provision in prior years 132 (436) 
Tax effect of share of profit recognised under the equity method (8,196) (38,164) 
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 7,455 10,582
Others (6,022) (4,622) 

Actual income tax (511,331) 310,184

The Group did not carry out business overseas and therefore does not incur overseas income taxes.

5. Loss/earnings per share
The calculation of basic loss/earnings per share is based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB 1,528,397,000
(2011: profit of RMB 956,106,000) and 7,200,000,000 (2011: 7,200,000,000) shares in issue during the year.

The amount of diluted loss/earnings per share is not presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for either year.
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6. Dividends

(a) Dividends attributable to the year

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date of RMB nil per share (2011: RMB 0.05 per share) �  360,000

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the directors� meeting on 29 March 2012, a final dividend of RMB 0.05 per share totalling RMB 360,000,000
was proposed for shareholders� approval at the Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31 December 2011. No final dividend was proposed
after the balance sheet date in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved during the year

2012 2011

RMB�000 RMB�000
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved during the year, of RMB 0.05 per share (2011: RMB
0.10 per share) 360,000 720,000

7. Trade and other debtors

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Trade debtors 94,366 126,671
Less: Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (882) (4,735) 

93,484 121,936
Bills receivable 2,046,657 2,988,010
Amounts due from related parties 1,052,842 639,286

3,192,983 3,749,232
Other debtors and prepayments 599,402 242,811

3,792,385 3,992,043

Amounts due from related parties mainly represent trade-related balances.
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The aging analysis of trade debtors, bills receivable and amounts due from related parties (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts)
is as follows:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Invoice date:
Within one year 3,192,974 3,748,135
Between one and two years 9 1,097

3,192,983 3,749,232

Bills receivable represent short-term banker acceptance receivables that entitle the Group to receive the full face amount of the receivables from
the banks at maturity, which generally range from one to six months from the date of issuance. Historically, the Group had experienced no credit
losses on bills receivable.

Sales are generally on a cash basis. Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available for major customers with
well-established trading records.

8. Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are repayable as follows:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Long term bank loans
� After 2 years but within 5 years 860,780 35,050
� After 1 year but within 2 years 370,560 125,000

1,231,340 160,050
-------------- ------------

Loans due within one year
� Short term bank loans 10,803,877 4,852,074
� Short term loans from a related party 220,000 660,000

11,023,877 5,512,074
-------------- ------------

12,255,217 5,672,124
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9. Trade payables

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Trade creditors 2,886,616 3,126,495
Bills payable �  15,688
Amounts due to related parties 3,411,279 2,242,868

6,297,895 5,385,051

The maturity analysis of trade payables is as follows:
2012

RMB�000
2011

RMB�000
Due within 1 month or on demand 6,088,323 5,166,297
Due after 1 month and within 3 months 209,572 218,754

6,297,895 5,385,051
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10. Segment reporting
Turnover

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Manufactured products
Synthetic fibres
� external sales 3,344,190 4,198,251
� intersegment sales 93 118

Total 3,344,283 4,198,369
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Resins and plastics
� external sales 14,828,298 16,589,438
� intersegment sales 108,618 136,352

Total 14,936,916 16,725,790
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Intermediate petrochemicals
� external sales (note a) 18,161,380 19,242,850
� intersegment sales (note b) 19,085,952 19,498,129

Total 37,247,332 38,740,979
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Petroleum products
� external sales (note a) 43,754,793 42,896,821
� intersegment sales 5,618,459 5,156,614

Total 49,373,252 48,053,435
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Trading of petrochemical products
� external sales (note a) 12,025,361 11,620,440
� intersegment sales 3,423,818 3,385,692

Total 15,449,179 15,006,132
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Others
� external sales (note a) 894,316 971,056
� intersegment sales 718,864 814,281

Total 1,613,180 1,785,337
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Elimination of intersegment sales (28,955,804) (28,991,186) 
----------------------------- ---------------------------

Turnover 93,008,338 95,518,856
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(Loss)/profit before taxation

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

(Loss)/profit from operations
Synthetic fibres (405,349) 301,334
Resins and plastics (1,291,393) 11,994
Intermediate petrochemicals 832,675 1,148,572
Petroleum products (993,026) (453,368) 
Trading of petrochemical products 46,448 14,969
Others 38,199 36,323

Consolidated (loss)/profit from operations (1,772,446) 1,059,824
Net finance (costs)/income (283,257) 83,542
Investment income 6,446 685
Share of profit of associates and jointly controlled entities 32,784 152,655

(Loss)/profit before taxation (2,016,473) 1,296,706

Note (a):
External sales include sales to Sinopec Corp., its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities as follows:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Sales to Sinopec Corp., its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
Intermediate petrochemicals 4,355,455 4,851,962
Petroleum products 37,618,198 36,585,798
Trading of petrochemical products 6,999,471 8,721,026
Others 620,145 544,846

Total 49,593,269 50,703,632

Note (b):

Intermediate petrochemicals� intersegment sales to each of the other reportable segments are as follows:

2012
RMB�000

2011
RMB�000

Synthetic fibres 3,483,378 3,160,141
Resins and plastics 15,302,334 16,037,690
Petroleum products 300,240 300,298

Total 19,085,952 19,498,129
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7.3 The reconciliation between financial statements prepared under CAS and IFRS
The reconciliation between the net profit and net assets of the consolidated financial statements prepared under CAS and IFRS is presented as
below (��� for net loss):

Note

Net profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the
Company (�-� for net loss)

Net assets attributable

to equity shareholders
of the Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB�000 RMB�000 RMB�000 RMB�000

Under CAS �1,548,466 944,414 16,190,419 18,112,483
Adjustments under IFRS:
Government grants (i) 30,099 29,386 �153,253 �183,352
Safety production costs (ii) �13,598 �24,971 �  �  
Effects of the above adjustments on taxation 3,568 7,277 �  �3,568

Under IFRS �1,528,397 956,106 16,037,166 17,925,563

(i) Government grants
Under CAS, government subsidies defined as capital contributions according to the relevant government requirements are not considered a
government grant, but instead should be recorded as an increase in capital reserves.

Under IFRS, such grants are offset against the cost of asset to which the grants are related. Upon transfer to property, plant and equipment, the
grant is recognised as income over the useful life of the property, plant and equipment by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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(ii) Safety production costs
Under CAS, safety production costs should be recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in reserve according to PRC
regulations. Such reserve is reduced for expenses incurred for safety production purposes or, when safety production related fixed assets are
purchased, is reduced by the purchased cost with a corresponding increase in the accumulated depreciation. Such fixed assets are not depreciated
thereafter. Under IFRS, expenses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred, and property, plant and equipment are depreciated with
applicable methods.

By Order of the Board
Rong Guangdao

Chairman
Shanghai, the PRC, 27 March 2013

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors of the Company are Rong Guangdao, Wang Zhiqing, Wu Haijun, Li Honggen, Shi
Wei and Ye Guohua; the non-executive directors of the Company are Lei Dianwu and Xiang Hanyin, and the independent non-executive
directors of the Company are Shen Liqiang, Jin Mingda, Wang Yongshou and Cai Tingji.
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